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2002 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the Year (in HK$ million)

Net Interest Income
Non-Interest Income
Operating Expenses

Charge for Bad and Doubtful Debts

Profit before Taxation
Taxation
Profit Attributable to Shareholders

At Year End (in HKS$ million)

Loans and Advances
Total Assets

Total Deposits
Shareholders’ Funds

Financial Ratios

Capital Adequacy (Adjusted)
Average Liquidity for the Year
Cost to Income

Loans to Deposits

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Final Results Announcement
Posting Date for Annual Report
Share Register Closing Period
Date of Annual General Meeting
Dividend Payment Date

N/A — Not Applicable

2 RETIERT(ENERLT « —ET-EFH

2002

689
391
307
182
571

88
482

2002

32,874
62,262
40,180

5,951

2002

17.8%
35.9%
28.5%
80.0%

2001

488
203
289

66
332

330

2001

28,452
43,497
29,705

5,071

2001

16.1%
39.7%
41.9%
92.0%

M E mm

o o Y 111
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2HEHL
% Change

+41
+93
+6
+175
+72
N/A
+46

2EENLL
% Change

+16
+43
+35
+17

4th March 2003
31st March 2003

9th - 16th April 2003

16th April 2003
16th May 2003
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

For the Year (in HKS million)

Net Interest Income

Non-Interest Income

Operating Expenses

Charge for Bad and Doubtful Debts

Profit/(loss) before Taxation

Taxation Charge/(Credit)

Profit/(loss) Attributable to
Shareholders

Per Share (in HKS)

Basic Earnings per Share
Dividends per Share

At Year End (in HK$ million)

Loans and Advances
Total Assets

Total Deposits
Sharehoﬁiers' Funds

Financial Ratios

Capital Adequacy (Adjusted)
Average Liquidity for the Year
Loans to Deposits

Loans to Total Assets

NPL ratio

General Provision Coverage
Cost to Income

Dividend Payout

Return on Assets

Return on Common Equity

N/A — Not Applicable

HRERBTA 2 € EEN (FEET)
Operating Profit Before Provisions (HK$ Million)

800 7
7001
600
5001

300 1
200
100 1

0 4
o

367
4004 +21%

736
+92%
384
+51%
254
190 +34%
-48%
99 00 01 02

2002

689
391
307
182
570

88

482

2002

0.70
0.35

2002

32,874
62,262
40,180

5,951

2002

17.8%
35.9%
80.0%
52.8%

2.3%

0.9%
28.5%
60.0%

1.0%
10.4%

2001 2000 1999
488 386 321
203 98 87
289 230 218
66 156 738
331 150 (547)
1 0 (2)
330 150 (545)
2001 2000 1999
0.56 0.33 (1.59)
0.27 0.13 N/A
2001 2000 1999
28,452 13,673 11,968
43,497 20,657 19,158
29,705 16,281 16,155
5,071 2,583 2,430
2001 2000 1999
16.1% 17.8% 20.0%
39.7% 43.3% 56.4%
92.0% 74.0% 61.3%
65.4% 66.2% 62.5%
6.8% 23.2% 31.5%
0.8% 0.9% 1.0%
41.9% 47.5% 53.4%
59.9% 39.1% N/A
1.1% 0.8% N/A
9.3% 5.9% N/A
BERA (FEET)
Profit After Tax (HKS$ Million)
482
500 +46%
4001 RE )
300
200 &2
1004 33 15
o NA
600+
\98 99 00 01 02

1998

455
131
219
329

40

33

1998

oo
o —
&=

1998

14,454
21,465
18,284

2,416

1998

15.7%
43.3%
69.6%
67.3%
9.0%
0.9%
37.4%
72.9%
0.2%
1.3%

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited ® 2002 Annual Report
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BEERE (B8ET)
Total Assets (HK$ Million)

70,000 7
60,000 1
50,000 1
40,000 1
30,000 1
20,000 1
10,000 1

21,465
+0%

0 4
\98

DEPOSITS

1.

By Type

Current
Savings
Fixed
Total

By Remaining Maturity

Repayable on Demand

Three Months or Less

One Year or Less, but Over Three Months
Five Years or Less, but Over One Year
Total

By Currency

HKD
usb
Others
Total

NON-INTEREST INCOME

Net Fees and Commission Income
Gain from Foreign Exchange Activities
Gain from Trading Securities

Dividend Income

Others

Total

20,657
+8%

TREHE (BEET)
Total Deposits (HKS Million)

62,262
+43%

45,0001
40,000
35,000 1
30,000 1
25,0001 189

43,497
+111%

20,000 1 iy

15,000 1
10,000 1
5,000 1

01 02

MERRE « —TE_FFR

0 4
\98

16,155
-12%

2002

1.8%
5.6%
92.6%
100.0%

2002

7.4%
85.2%
7.2%
0.2%
100.0%

2002

53.9%
41.4%
4.7%
100.0%

2002

84.3%
2.1%
0.6%
2.0%

11.0%

100.0%

29,705
+82%
16,281
+1%
00 01

40,180
+35%

02

2001

1.7%
5.3%
93.0%
100.0%

2001

7.1%
88.6%
4.3%
0.0%
100.0%

2001

61.4%
34.7%
3.9%
100.0%

2001

80.6%
57%
6.9%
0.7%
6.1%

100.0%
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EXRRBREE (FEET) FTRAERLER
Total Loans and Advances (HK$ Million) NPL Ratio
35,000 31}22/4 35% 1
28452 *2® 31.5%
30,000 +108% 30% 1
25,000 1 25%
'
20,000 20% ’
14,454
: 13,673 ’
1 % nges 1390 9
15,000 1968 L% 15% oot
10,000 0%
'
5,000 5%

0 4
\98 99
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LOAN PORTFOLIO#
1. By Industry Sectors

Loans for Use in Hong Kong
Industry, Commercial and Financial:

Property Development
Property Investment
Financial Concerns
Stockbrokers
Wholesale and Retail Trade
Civil Engineering Works
Manufacturing
Transport and Transport Equipment
Electricity, Gas and Telecommunications
Hotels, Boarding Houses & Catering
Others

Individuals:

Mortgage (Home Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase Scheme)

Mortgage (Other Presidential Properties)

Credit Card Advances

Others

Trade Finance
I.oulns for Use outside Hong Kong
Tota

2. By Remaining Maturity

Repayable on Demand

One Year or Less

Five Years or Less, but Over One Year
Over Five Years

Undated

Total

3. By Currency

HKD
usD
Others
Total

# Excluding Trade Bills and Advances to Banks

o 4
o1 02 kos 99

2002

4.8%
14.6%
7.4%
0.1%
4.7%
2.3%
4.5%
14.9%
4.7%
3.5%
10.3%

0.4%
19.6%
0.0%
2.2%
3.3%
2.7%

100.0%

2002

4.3%
18.4%
39.5%
35.5%

2.3%
00.0%

2002

83.3%
15.9%
0.8%
100%

2001

4.9%
16.0%
12.2%

0.1%

6.4%

0.8%

3.5%
13.7%

5.0%

2.9%

7.4%

0.4%
16.1%
0.0%
3.1%
3.4%
4.1%
100.0%

2001

3.6%
16.8%
47 9%
24.5%

7.2%

100.0%

2001

85.6%
14.3%
0.1%
100%

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited ® 2002 Annual Report
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

In 2002, the banking industry was operated arduously in a sluggish economy and an
intensively competitive environment. In the face of the severe challenge, Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited effectively pursued its development strategy, and
with the collaborative effort from the management team and all dedicated staff, the Bank
repeated to achieve another remarkable results following the strong growth in 2001. For the
year of 2002, the audited consolidated after tax profit was amplified by 46% to HK$482

million.

Following ICBC's acquisition, the capabilities of the Bank have been growing continually. In
2002, the Bank increased its capital by HK$2.8 billion through the issuance of new ordinary
shares and subordinated notes, thereby further strengthening its capital structure and
establishing a solid platform for its future development. At the same time, the Bank devoted
itself to improving its asset quality which has resulted in the significant drop of NPL ratio from
6.8% to 2.3%. The Bank has also actively participated in the local syndicated loan market
and capital market. By establishing close relationship with major blue-chip enterprises and
China-affiliated institutions in Hong Kong, the Bank has optimized its customer base and has
given impetus to the healthy development of its comprehensive business, which have enhanced

its market image and competitiveness significantly.

Being the listed flagship of ICBC for its overseas business development, the Bank has
successfully employed the strategy of internal and external interaction in various business
fields. Taking advantage of ICBC's brand, branch networks, customer base and settlement
system, the Bank has closely cooperated with ICBC mainland branches and has jointly
developed the domestic and the Mainland financial market by providing efficient, high-
quality and integrated cross-border services to the customers in the Mainland and in Hong
Kong. Regarding the retail business, the Bank has successfully launched a series of cross-
border services including “Remittance Express”, “Mortgage Plus” and “Easyaccess”. As for
RMB financing business, the Bank has assisted the customers whose enterprises are located in
the Mainland to obtain RMB financing by providing guarantees and issuing letter of credits to
ICBC mainland branches. In terms of Taiwan business, the Bank has seized the opportunity of
the growing demand of cross-strait and cross-border financial services for Taiwan-based
enterprises by acting as a bridge between the banks of the Mainland and Taiwan and
providing various kind of services such as remittance, settlement, trade finance, RMB financing,
factoring and forfeiting. On credit card business, the Bank has acted as the marketing agent
for ICBC since the end of 2002 to promote its dual-currency credit card firstly launched in
Hong Kong, which is also the first card with two accounts (in Renminbi and Hong Kong

dollars) targeting at customers shuttling between Hong Kong and the Mainland.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited ® 2002 Annual Report
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

The impressive results achieved in 2002 are the result of the aggressiveness and initiatives of
the Bank and the leverage of internal and external interaction under the solid support from
the parent bank, ICBC. Since the acquisition by ICBC, the Bank has united for advancement
in adverse market condition, and was able to register a fast growing profits and assets.
Together with the significant plunge of NPL ratio to a better-than-peer level and the progressive
increase in return on equity, the Bank has demonstrated its successful transformation to a

healthy and fast growing bank and its management capability to manage a listed bank.

Looking ahead to 2003, given China’s accession to the WTO and the integration of regional
economies, it is expected that the growing demands for cross-border and cross-straits financial
services amongst Hong Kong, Taiwan and the Mainland shall provide much room for ICBC
(Asia) for development by capitalizing on the brand and resources of its parent through
internal and external interaction. While enhancing its competitiveness in corporate financing
business, the Bank shall also endeavor to strengthen its services in the areas of commercial
banking, personal banking and wealth management through innovation and cross-selling. By
enhancing its comprehensive competitiveness, the Bank is on the right track towards one of
the excellent and premier commercial banks in Hong Kong to provide value-added returns to

its customers and shareholders.

Taking this opportunity, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to all our valued
customers, business partners and shareholders for their enormous support to ICBC (Asia). |
would also like to thank our dedicated staff for their collaborative efforts and hard work,

which have contributed immensely to the Bank’s development.

Dr. Jiang Jianqing
Chairman

4th March 2003

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited ® 2002 Annual Report
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BAEE —FE-F N
Income Composition 2002
ERIISYON Net Interest Income 64% O
FWE BB WA Net Fee and Commission Income 30% .
NER S EFE Net Gains from Foreign Exchange Activities 1% O
\_ Hihg A Other Income 5% O
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

Despite the unfavourable market sentiment and the prolonged downturn in the local and the
world economy, with the full and unreserved support from the parent bank, ICBC, Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited (“ICBC (Asia)” or “the Bank”) successfully met the
performance challenge by building on its operating strengths and achieved a remarkable result.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Amidst a difficult operating environment and a challenging year in 2002, the Directors of the
Bank are pleased to announce another year of remarkable earnings growth. Consolidated
profit attributable to shareholders recorded HK$482 million, representing an increase of
46% over that of HK$330 million for the year of 2001. The significant growth in earnings
was attributed to strong performance in fee income and by exercising stringent cost control.
Earnings per share was HK$0.70 (2001: HK$0.56). Return on average assets and return on
average common equity were 1.0% and 10.4% respectively (2001: 1.1% and 9.3%).

Net interest income for the year of 2002 surged by 41% to HK$689 million over 2001,
mainly due to a 16% increase in total loans that had largely compensated the squeeze in net
interest margin. The net interest margin actually dropped 17 basis points to 1.49% in the first
half of 2002 and further decreased by 4 basis points to 1.45% for the second half of 2002.
Through a judicious approach to asset and liability management, the net interest margin
distinctly narrowed from the decline of 17 basis points in the first half of 2002 despite

pressure on pricing.

Other operating income recorded a substantial increase of 93% to HK$391 million (2001:
HK$203 million). Fee income was largely derived from syndicated loans and capital market
activities. Other fees were generated from trade finance, treasury activities and retail services.

The proportion of non-interest income to total operating income was 36% (2001: 29%).

While total operating income increased 56% to HK$1,080 million, operating expenses were
effectively controlled and only up by é% to HK$307 million (2001: HK$289 million), resulting
in a more efficient cost income ratio (excluding amortisation of goodwill of HK$36 million) of
28% compared to 42% last year. Total number of staff was 553 as at 31st December 2002
compared with 558 at the end of 2001.

EEXHAS —BB=F N
Operating Expenses Composition 2002

BI%H Staff Expenses 62% Q

S g Premises Expenses 1% O

B Operation Expenses 15% O

B H Computer Expenses 6% O

EBHE LT Business Promotion Expenses 2% O

B X Communication Expenses 4% O
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Net charge for bad and doubtful debts for the year of 2002 was HK$182 million, HK$58
million of which related to building up of the general provision as the loan book expanded
and HK$124 million related to net specific charge [i.e. after netting of provision writebacks).
Compared with last year, net specific provision edged up moderately by HK$58 million
mainly due to reduced level of provision writebacks. New charges were in fact decreased by

HK$42 million despite the enlarged loan book.

Total assets were HK$62,262 million as at 31st December 2002, a 43% rise when compared
with 31st December 2001. The asset growth was mainly achieved through the enlargement
of loan book. Despite the lackluster lending environment in Hong Kong, the Bank’s loan book
maintained a strong growth of 16%, up HK$4,423 million since 31st December 2001. The
majority of new loans were syndicated loans to large cap blue-chip corporations and other
China or China affiliated blue-chip companies, resulting in a much improved risk profile of
the loan book. Other growth was recorded in residential mortgages, trade finance and hire

purchase loans.

Additional investment in quality debt securities was also made in an effort to increase
interest-earning assets. As at 31st December 2002, total investment in debt securities amounted
to HK$10,212 million, or 16% of total assets (31st December 2001: HK$6,742 million).
Most of the investments were classified as held-to-maturity securities while the remaining were

classified as non-trading securities.

Customers’ deposits amounted to HK$38,751 million or 73% of total liabilities as at 31st
December 2002. When compared to 2001, customers’ deposits achieved encouraging growth
of 30%. During the year, the Bank also issued Certificates of Deposits of HK$1,429 million in
total to secure longer term funding. The loans to deposits (i.e. customers’ deposits + certificates
of deposit issued) ratio stood at an efficient level of 80% (31st December 2001: 92%).

ASSET QUALITY

Compared to the year end of 2001, the gross non-performing loans (NPLs) as at 31st
December 2002 dropped HK$1,191 million to HK$739 million, of which HK$518 million
was due to recoveries while another HK$843 million of the fully-provided NPLs were written
off against the loan loss reserves. NPL ratio dropped from 6.8% as at 31st December 2001
to 2.3% as at 31st December 2002. The exposure to unsecured personal credits remained

insignificant.

As at 31st December 2002, the cumulative provisions for bad and doubtful debts were
HK$545 million, comprising specific provision of HK$270 million and general provision of
HK$275 million.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited ® 2002 Annual Report



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Compared with 31st December 2001, overdue loans reduced by HK$ 1,179 million to HK$454
million as at 31st December 2002. The debt coverage ratio (i.e. specific provision + collateral)
for overdue loans was 97.0% as of 31st December 2002 (31st December 2001: 94.1%).
The debt coverage ratio for UB China Business Management Co. Ltd.’s overdue portfolio was

92.3% while the Bank’s remaining overdue portfolio was fully covered.
CAPITAL AND LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT

The capital base was augmented via the issuance of subordinated floating rate notes and
new ordinary shares. In March 2002, the Bank issued US$70 million term subordinated
floating rate notes to the ultimate holding company. In December 2002, the Bank continued
to issue HK$1.5 billion subordinated floating rate notes into two tranches: (a) HK$500
million term subordinated notes, the Lower Tier Il Capital; and (b) HK$1 billion perpetual
subordinated notes, the Upper Tier Il Capital; All of which were fully subscribed by the
ultimate holding company evidencing strong parent support to ICBC (Asia).

On 21st May 2002, 93,055,000 new ordinary shares were allotted at HK$8.16 per share.
Total net share proceeds amounted to approximately HK$748 million. The purpose of the
issue was to enlarge the Tier 1 capital to support further business expansion, to improve
share liquidity and to increase institutional shareholding. The share proceeds were used to

finance the Bank’s asset growth.

The adjusted consolidated capital adequacy ratio of ICBC (Asia) increased by 1.7% to a
healthy level of 17.8% at the end of 2002 (2001: 16.1%) compared with the Bank for
International Settlements minimum requirement of 8%, allowing us to capitalize on new

business opportunities.

The liquidity position remained strong throughout the year of 2002 with an average liquidity
ratio of 35.9% (Average for the year of 2001: 39.7%), which was well above the statutory
requirement of 25%, enabling us to meet liquidity needs without compromising the profitability
of the Bank.

ACQUISITION OF TAI PING INSURANCE

On 20th September 2002, ICBC (Asia) has strengthened its participation in the China
insurance market by acquiring the stake of 24.9% in The Tai Ping Insurance Company,
Limited (“Tai Ping Insurance”) from China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited
and China Insurance (Holdings) Company, Limited (formerly known as China Insurance
Company, Limited) for a total consideration of HK$176 million. The 24.9% stake in Tai Ping
Insurance offers the Bank another stepping stone to benefit from the growing China insurance
market. The Bank is expecting this arm to deliver profit contribution by means of rising

underwriting profits and investment return in the future.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited ® 2002 Annual Report
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RIRITREFEEFTEEB _BATEEXTREE
R B RIXEZE (Sole Mandate)

The Bank obtained the Sole Mandate from COSCO Hong
Kong Group in relation to a syndicated loan of US$250
million.
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The Bank acted as a joint
bookrunner in the issue
of a perpetual upper tier-
two bond. The project
has been awarded by
“The Asset” as “The Best
Hybrid Bank Bond Deal”.

CORPORATE BANKING

Since the acquisition of the Branch commercial banking business
in 2001, Corporate Banking has been a significant driving force
for the Bank’s business and profit growth. It remained the key
contributor to the Bank's profitability, contributing more than half
of the Bank’s pre-tax profit, of which two-thirds come from fee-
based income, which reflects Corporate Banking’s ability to
enhance the Bank’s return on assets. On a year-on-year basis,
Corporate Banking also achieved a double-digit growth on both

assets and profits.

The Bank has established an eminent reputation in the loan
syndication market. According to basis point, the leading Asian debt market newsletter, the
Bank was among the top three arrangers in the Hong Kong and China loan syndication
market. The newsletter also ranked the Bank 6th in its 2002 Asian loan syndication league
table (excluding Japan and Australia). For the year 2002, Corporate Banking arranged 32
syndicated loans involving HK$96 billion. A notable transaction, in which the Bank acted as
the sole arranger, was the HK$14.8 billion refinancing for GH Water Supply (Holdings) Ltd.,
which is the largest Hong Kong Dollar syndicated loan in history.

Corporate Banking has also successfully arranged for the issue of convertible bonds for a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, which demonstrates our ability to expand
into similar structured financing products in the future. The Bank also provides corporate
finance and advisory services to our clients, including acting as a financial adviser in connection

with the corporate re-organization of a major listed conglomerate group in Hong Kong.

The Bank is among the leading bankers of major PRC and local corporations in Hong Kong.
With the strong support of the largest shareholder, The Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China, the Bank’s client base continues to expand and is considered a banking partner in

their business development in both the domestic and the Mainland markets.
TREASURY AND MARKETS

It was a very tough year for Treasury & Markets (“T&M”) in 2002. Interest rates were kept
declining and reported a record low level during the year. FX market was very volatile with
strong USD trend completely reversed. Despite difficult operating environment, T&M was able
to produce results and generate revenue well above the planned target. Compared with
2001, T&M has more than doubled its profits and assets, which contributed significantly to

the Bank’s overall performance.

With the prolonged low interest surroundings in 2002, T&M continued to expand its investment
in debt securities to secure net interest income. Nearly 95% of these investments were
investment grade securities, reflecting the Bank’s direction to uphold asset quality and diversify

income sources.
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T&M also brought in fee income by underwriting over HK$18 billion debt issues in 29
primary market deals. Among these primary deals, the most remarkable deal was the first
Asian (ex-Japan) perpetual upper tier-two bond issued by Citic Ka Wah Bank where the Bank
acted as a joint bookrunner. The deal was also awarded by The Asset as “The Best Hybrid
Bank Bond Deal”. The Bank also ranked at 13th in the HKD Capital Markets according to
MCM MarketWatch.

T&M also actively participated in assets/liabilities management and capital management. In
September 2002, T&M has made pilot launch of ICBC (Asia)’s HK$5 billion Certificate of
Deposit Programme. A total of HK$1.4 billion Certificates of Deposits were issued off the

Programme to institutions and retail customers.
RETAIL BANKING

Despite the continuing gloomy economic environment and keen
competition within the industry posted great difficulties in our business
development, Retail Banking strived to grow its loan portfolio to
compensate for the margin squeeze. With our dedicated efforts, flexible
payment plans and close cooperation with major property developers,
residential mortgage loans grew by 44%, we are now ranked 6th in the

primary property market. Hire purchase and leasing volume also grew
by 33.3%.

Following the launch of “Express Remittance” service to designated

branches of ICBC in Guangdong province in 2001, we have extended
the service to cover designated ICBC branches in Shanghai and Beijing  zwipmesmp=smas  mr

in 2002. The service is well received by our customers for the funds can RAEF®W TR -

Retail banking introduces various types of wealth
management products in order to meet the different
mind, beneficiaries may also be advised the receipt of proceeds by demands of customers.

reach the recipients within half a working day. To get an extra peace of

phone. The Bank will continue to extend the service further to cover

other provinces in the Mainland.

We also launched “Mortgage Plus” service
which offers Hong Kong Dollar/US Dollar
real estate financing service in the Mainland
China. Customers not only enjoy the
convenience of repaying the mortgages in
Hong Kong, but also benefit from the
competitive interest rates and flexible

repayment methods. The service now covers

AERIT R D ITEBEE R HEE B RICBCE B A - Beijing, Shanghai and Guangdong areas
All branches of the Bank focus on promoting ICBC's first

dval-corrency eredit card. and several projects have been lined up to

offer the HKD & USD mortgage financing
to the end-buyer.
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In response to the customer needs, especially in a low interest environment, the Bank has
expanded its investment-related products. We continue to provide structured deposits such
as equity-linked deposit and high yield currency-linked deposit which have gained positive
feedback from our high-end customers. We also provides one-stop Unit Trusts Investment
service to our customers where over 110 funds from four leading fund houses are available
for selection. In August 2002, we started Bonds Investment Service in which customers can
have a wide selection of quality bonds issued by reputable institutions worldwide that best
meet their investment objectives. In December 2002, we issued the maiden retail Certificates
of Deposit. Due to the outstanding subscription responses from customers, three batches of

retail Certificates of Deposit were issued amounted to a total of HK$200 million and

US$40 million.

To develop a customer-driven sales and service culture, we have provided professional training
regularly to equip our front-line people to better serve the customers. Over 80% of our front
line staff are now qualified for selling investment products such as insurance and MPF.

The Bank continues its effort in upgrading the domestic branch network progressively through
renovation and rationalization so as to make the operations more sales oriented and customer
centric. Our renovated branches at Mongkok and West Point also followed the same concept.
As at 31st December 2002, the Bank has 20 branches in Hong Kong. Relocation of small
branches and opening of new branches in strategic locations will be continued for future
growth opportunities.

It is envisaged that Retail Banking will become far more competitive in the year to come. We
shall keep on promoting residential mortgage loans and hire purchase and leasing businesses
along the track to increase our market share and return. We shall leverage and enhance our
mutual co-operations and connections with ICBC Mainland branches to capture every business
opportunities within the region. We shall strive to build up a more solid, massive and
profitable retail customer base by setting up wealth management centre, rationalizing branch
network, speeding up product development and restructuring of retail management structure.
Through these initiatives, we aim to strengthen the economy of scale, reinforce the marketing
oriented culture, improve operational efficiency and enhance profitability.

COMMERCIAL BANKING

Notwithstanding the overall contraction of loan demand for commercial lending in Hong
Kong for 2002, Commercial Banking achieved around 30% growth compared with the
preceding year. With an eye on the huge China market for most of the local companies, the
Bank is able to continue capturing new clients with solid business background. RMB loan
extended by ICBC mainland branches supported by our standby L/C remains an attractive
products for local SMEs with China operations. Our express remittance service to China
enhances our competitiveness and increases our daily activities with our clients. As for 2003,
the global economy is still clouded with uncertainty but the China market still have potentials
for further exploring. The Bank will continue to support local companies through our
comprehensive financing services provided.
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FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Following the increasing number of direct investments in the Mainland by Taiwan-based
corporations, the demand for cross-border and cross-strait financial services grows substantially.
ICBC (Asia), being a Hong Kong listed flagship of ICBC, the largest commercial bank in
China who has extensive nationwide branch network, enjoys unrivalled advantages to act as
a bridge linking the financial activities between the Mainland and Taiwan. Up to 31st
December 2002, the Bank has already strengthened co-operations with 7 Taiwanese banks.
The Bank will continue to expand and reinforce the cross-strait financial services including
express remittance, settlement, trade finance, RMB financing, factoring and forfeiting.

CREDIT CARD BUSINESS

Our parent company, ICBC announced the launch of Hong Kong's first credit card for dual
currency accounts, in both Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars on 18th December 2002. ICBC
Credit Card is the first one in Hong Kong designed specifically for cross-border business
travelers as well as for transactions in both the Renminbi and local currency. It is also the first
time ICBC issues credit cards in Hong Kong.

Hong Kong Credit Card Centre, which is under the auspices of the ICBC Hong Kong Branch,
issues the card and appoints ICBC (Aisa) to market the card. It is expected that ICBC (Asia)

will be able to enjoy a multitude of financial services to be introduced in stages.
HUMAN RESOURCES

The Bank had totally 553 staff at the end of 2002. ICBC (Asia)
believes that our invaluable resources lie in our outstanding
personnel. In 2002, the Bank continued to increase investment in
human resources and recruit high calibres. Through various training
programs, the Bank proactively enhanced the know-how of our
staff, improved their customer service techniques, cultivated a sales
and marketing oriented culture and enabled our staff to work in

compliance with the relevant regulations.

The Bank attaches great importance to the value and performance

of our staff. As such the Bank implements a performance-based  yra=spr 7%
During the year, our Staff Recreation Association has

. o organized various types of activities including the basketball
departmental performance and results, as well as its objectives matches.

bonus system that links directly to the Bank’s overall profitability,
and value.

At ICBC, we have been working hard to develop our corporate culture. To this end, our
newly established Staff Recreation Association has organised a wide range of activities

including staff outgoings, war games, basketball matches, bowling contests and photography

contests so as to promote a sense of belonging and team spirit among our staff.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. Jiang Jianqing (Chairman)

Dr. Jiang, aged 50. Appointed as the Chairman and Director of the Bank since June 2000.
Graduated from Shanghai Jiaotong University with a Doctor’s Degree in Business Administration
and awarded a Certificate of Competence for Professor in the banking field. Dr. Jiang has
over 24 years of banking experience and he is the Chairman and President of The Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China.

Ms. Wang Lili (Vice Chairman)

Ms. Wang, aged 51. Appointed as the Vice Chairman and Director of the Bank since
December 2002. Ms. Wang is a member of the board and Executive Vice President of The
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China and looks over international business, overseas
business, corporate banking, institutional business, treasury and legal affairs. Graduated
from Nankai University with a Bachelor’s Degree and obtained her MBA in international
banking and finance from University of Birmingham, U.K. Ms. Wang has over 27 years of
banking experience and awarded a Certificate of Competence for Professor in the banking
field. She is also a Director of The Tai Ping Life Insurance Company, Limited.

Mr. Zhu Qi (Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Zhu, aged 42. Appointed as Director of the Bank since June 2000. In October 2001,
appointed as Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank, also the Chairman
of all subsidiaries of the Bank (except UB China Business Management Co. Ltd.) and a
Director of China Ping An Insurance (Hong Kong) Company Limited and The Tai Ping Insurance
Company, Limited, being the associated companies of the Bank. Graduated from Middle
China Economy and Financial University with a Bachelor’s Degree and a Master’s Degree in
Economics. Mr. Zhu has over 16 years of banking experience.

Mr. Chen Aiping (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Chen, aged 44. Appointed as Director of the Bank since December 2002. Graduated
from Wuhan University with a Bachelor of Arts Degree. Mr. Chen has over 17 years of
banking experience and he is the General Manager of the International Business Department

of The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China and a Director of Xiamen International Bank
and ICEA Finance Holdings Limited.

Ms. Zhao Jingfen (Director, Deputy General Manager and Alternate Chief Executive)

Ms. Zhao, aged 38. Appointed as Director of the Bank since June 2000 and was further
appointed as Deputy General Manager and Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank in July and
August 2000 respectively. Ms. Zhao was also appointed as Director of ICBC (Asia) Bullion
Company Limited, ICBC (Asia) Finance Limited and ICBC (Asia) Futures Limited, both of
which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank, in July 2000, September 2000 and
November 2002 respectively. Graduated from the Tianjin College of Finance and Economics
with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics and a Master’s Degree in Economics from the People’s
University of China. Ms. Zhao has over 17 years of banking experience and she was the
Deputy General Manager of the International Business Department of The Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China, Head Office, focusing on correspondent banking, trade finance,
loan syndication, export credit, debt capital market and international settlement.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Kwok Kin Hung (Director, Deputy General Manager and Alternate Chief Executive)

Mr. Kwok, aged 44. Joined the Bank as Deputy General Manager since July 2001 and was
further appointed as Alternate Chief Executive and Director of the Bank in October 2001 and
September 2002 respectively. Mr. Kwok was also appointed as Director of ICBC (Asia)
Nominee Limited, ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited and ICBC (Asia) Futures Limited, both
of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank, in September and October 2002
respectively and a Director of China Ping An Insurance (Hong Kong) Company Limited, an
associated company of the Bank. Mr. Kwok joined The Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China, Hong Kong Branch as Deputy General Manager in June 1998. Graduated from The
University of Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor’s Degree in social sciences. Mr. Kwok has
over 19 years’ management experience in banking business.

Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, s, P (Independent Non-executive Director)

Professor Wong, aged 50. Appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank
since July 2000. Graduated from University of Chicago with a Bachelor’s and a Master’s
Degrees in Economics and also a Doctorate in Economics. Professor Wong is Dean of the
Faculty of Business and Economics and Chair of Economics at The University of Hong Kong.
He has been active in advancing economic research on policy issues in Hong Kong and
China through his work as founding Director of both the Hong Kong Centre for Economic
Research and the Hong Kong Institute of Economics and Business Strategy. Professor Wong
had served on numerous public bodies and is currently a member of the Hong Kong University
Grants Committee, Housing Authority, Services Promotion Strategy Group, Exchange Fund
Advisory Committee and the Selection Committee for the Admission of Talents Scheme.
Professor Wong was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star in 1999 by the Government of the
HKSAR for his contributions in education, housing, industry and technology development.

Mr. Fung, Daniel Richard, sc (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Fung, aged 49, is Senior Counsel practicing at the Hong Kong Bar. Appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank since July 2000. Graduated from the University
College London with LL.B. in 1974 and LL.M. in 1978. Called to the English Bar at Middle
Temple in 1975 and admitted to the Hong Kong Bar in 1977. Appointed Queen’s Counsel in
1990, Mr. Fung was Solicitor General for Hong Kong from 1994-1998. Served on the Basic
Law Consultative Committee 1985-1990, Hong Kong Government Central Policy Unit 1993-
1994. Mr. Fung is currently Chairman of the Broadcasting Authority, Chairman of East-West
Strategic Development Commission, Chairman of China Law Council, a Non-executive Director
of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission, a Board Member of the Airport
Authority, a Director of the Salzburg Seminar, a member of the World Bank International
Advisory Council on Law and Justice, Consultant to the United Nations Development Program,
and also an Independent Non-executive director of Guangdong Investment Limited. He was
appointed Visiting Scholar at Harvard Law School 1998-1999, Senior Visiting Fellow at Yale
Law School in 1999 and Distinguished Fulbright Scholar for Hong Kong in 2000.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Tsui, aged 53. Appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank since
August 2000. Graduated from University of Tennessee, USA with a Bachelor of Science
Degree and a Master of Engineering Degree in Industrial Engineering. He has completed the
Program for Senior Managers in Government at the John F. Kennedy School of Government at
Harvard University. Mr. Tsui is currently the Chief Executive of WAG Financial Services
Group Limited. Prior to his current appointment, he was the Adviser and Council Member of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange from July 2001 to June 2002 and was the Chief Executive of
iRegent Group Limited, a Hong Kong listed investment company, from August 2000 to February
2001. His is also Chairman of the Hong Kong Securities Institute and a Member of the
Investment Sub-Committee of the Government Committee of the Beat Drugs Fund Association.
He joined The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 1994 as Executive Director of the
Finance and Operations Services Division and became the Chief Executive from 1997. He
was also the Chief Operating Officer of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited from
March 2000 to July 2000 and the Assistant Director of the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong from 1989 to 1993. Mr. Tsui also involved in numerous government and
community activities, including being a former Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of
Tracker Fund of Hong Kong, Chairman of the Organizing Committee of ICAC Professional
Ethics Programme for the Securities, Futures and Investments Sectors, a former Member of the
Standing Committee on Company Law Reform, the Hong Kong Trade Development Council
Financial Services Advisory Committee, The Community Chest of Hong Kong Corporate and
Employee Contribution Programme Organising Committee Banking and Finance Group, and
the Banking and Finance Industry Training Board of the Vocational Training Council.

Mr. Wang Yan (Deputy General Manager)

Mr. Wang, aged 37. Joined the Bank as Deputy General Manager and appointed as Chairman
of UB China Business Management Co. Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank since
July 2001. Mr. Wang was also appointed as Director of ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company
Limited and ICBC (Asia) Finance Limited, both of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Bank in July 2001. Mr. Wang joined The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Hong
Kong Branch as Deputy General Manager in August 2000. Graduated from the Beijing
University and holds a Bachelor’s Degree and a Master’s Degree in International Law. He is
currently a candidate for a Doctorate in national economic management of the Beijing
University. Mr. Wang has over 13 years’ management experience in banking business.

Mr. Pang Koon Kwai (Assistant General Manager)

Mr. Pang, aged 49. Joined the Bank as Assistant General Manager since April 1999. Also
appointed as director of UB China Business Management Co. Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Bank since February 2000. Studied and received a Master’s Degree in Business in
1979 in the U.S.A. Over 22 years of banking experience with major U.S.A. and European
banks in Hong Kong of which 17 years was specialized in PRC banking.
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Mr. Tam Siu Man (Assistant General Manager)

Mr. Tam, aged 42. Joined the Bank as Assistant General Manager and Head of Commercial
Banking since January 2000. Graduated from University of Hawaii at Manoa, U.S.A. with a
Bachelor’'s Degree in Business Administration major in Finance. Mr. Tam has 20 years of
commercial banking experience with focus on commercial lending and trade financing.

Mr. Tang Kam Sun (Assistant General Manager)

Mr. Tang, aged 43. Joined the Bank as Chief Financial Officer and Assistant General
Manager since August 2002. He holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from
University of Abertay Dundee, UK and a Master’s Degree in Applied Finance from Charles
Sturt University, Australia. Mr. Tang is a member of Hong Kong Securities Institute and The
Chartered Management Institute (UK). He is also an associate member of The Hong Kong
Society of Accountants, The Chartered Institute of Bankers (UK), The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators (UK), The Institute for the Management of Information Systems
(UK) and a Certified Finance and Treasury Professional in The Finance and Treasury Association
(Australia). Mr. Tang has over 23 years of banking experience specialized in financial
management in multinational bank and financial institutions.

Mr. Fong Yuen Kwai (Assistant General Manager)

Mr. Fong, aged 44. Joined the Bank as Assistant General Manager and Head of Retail
Banking since September 2002. Mr. Fong was also appointed as Director of ICBC (Asia)
Nominee Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, in October 2002. Graduated from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Science and a
Master’'s Degree in Business Administration. Mr. Fong has over 18 years of banking
experience. Prior to joining the Bank, he was the Assistant General Manager and the Head
of Strategy and Business Planning Division, Retail Banking Department of Bank of China
(Hong Kong) Limited.

Mr. Shen Xiaogqi (Assistant General Manager)

Mr. Shen, aged 45. Joined the Bank as Assistant General Manager and Head of Financial
Institutions since November 2002. Graduated from B/ E — B T 26t (85 X/ KH)
and holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Asia International Open University,
Macau. Mr. Shen was the General Manager of International Business Department of The
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Guangdong Provinvial Branch.

Mr. Zhang Yi (Assistant General Manager)

Mr. Zhang, aged 40. Joined the Bank as Assistant General Manager since January 2003.
Graduated from Shanghai University of Finance & Economics with a Degree in Money &
Banking and qualified as a Senior Economist. Mr. Zhang was the General Manager of
Financial Planning Department of The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Shanghai
Municipal Branch.
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COMPANY PROFILE

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (ASIA) LIMITED

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited (“ICBC (Asia)”), being a member of
The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (“ICBC”)* family, enjoys ample support in

various areas such as funding, settlement, information technology and credit card operation.

ICBC (Asia) (formerly known as Union Bank of Hong Kong Limited) was established in Hong
Kong in 1964 and listed in 1973. Over the years, the Bank has offered new and diversified
banking services to its customers. Following the Bank’s change of name to “Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited” (“ICBC (Asia)” in short) on 21st August 2000, the
Bank has become a member of ICBC. In order to build a stronger association with the “ICBC”
Brand name and its nationwide branch network, ICBC (Asia) standardised the Chinese trade
name by adopting the long version of "/ B T #R1T (Z2)M) " since 21st February 2002. With

the new name, the Bank can better develop its financial business in Hong Kong and China.

In July 2001, ICBC injected the commercial banking business of its Hong Kong Branch into
ICBC (Asia). By doing so, it has expanded ICBC (Asia)’s customer base, improved its deposits
and loans portfolio as well as diversified its product mix. Such transfer of business therefore
has led to a substantial enhancement of the competitive capability of ICBC (Asia). The Bank

has since become the flagship of ICBC in developing overseas business.

With the nationwide branch network, leadership and expertise provided by ICBC, the Bank
will continue to offer a range of banking and financial services, including various types of
deposits and loans, trade finance, remittance, settlement, commercial and industrial finance,
syndicated loans, inward and outward bills of exchange, China business advisory and
financial services, securities business and bullion brokerage services as well as insurance

agency services.

ICBC is the largest commercial bank in China in terms of total assets. As at the end of
2001, it has total assets amounting to RMB4,300 billion, over 28,000 branches in
China, over 400 million individual deposit accounts and more than 8 million corporate
customers. More than half of the settlement transactions of the entire banking system in
China are processed through ICBC. ICBC has established a global branch network in
Hong Kong, Singapore, Tokyo, Seoul, Frankfurt and Luxuremburg, a subsidiary bank in
Almaty (Kazakhstan) and has representative offices in London, New York and Sydney.

In 2002, ICBC was ranked the 10th largest bank in the world in terms of Tier 1 Capital,
and, for three consecutive years, was awarded the title of “the Best Domestic Bank” in
Mainland China by “The Banker”. At the same year, ICBC was awarded “the Best
Banking Website” by “The Banker” and “the Best Corporate Website in China” by

“Global Finance”.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Jiang Jianqing (Chairman)
Wang Lili (Vice Chairman)
Zhu Qi (Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer)
Chen Aiping (Non-executive Director)
Zhao Jingfen (Director &
Deputy General Manager)
Kwok Kin Hung (Director &
Deputy General Manager)
Wong Yue Chim, Richard, s.B.S., J.P.
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Fung, Daniel Richard, sc
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec

(Independent Non-executive Director)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Lai Wing Nga

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Wong Yue Chim, Richard, s.B.S., J.P.
(Independent Non-executive Director &
Chairman)

Fung, Daniel Richard, sc
(Independent Non-executive Director &
Alternate Chairman)

Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Chen Aiping (Non-executive Director)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Zhu Qi (Managing Director &

Chief Executive Officer)
Zhao Jingfen (Director &

Deputy General Manager)
Kwok Kin Hung (Director &

Deputy General Manager)
Wang Yan (Deputy General Manager)
Pang Koon Kwai (Assistant General Manager)
Tam Siuv Man (Assistant General Manager)
Tang Kam Sun (Assistant General Manager)
Fong Yuen Kwai (Assistant General Manager)
Shen Xiaoqi (Assistant General Manager)
Zhang Yi (Assistant General Manager)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

SOLICITORS

Allen & Overy

9/F Three Exchange Square
Central

Hong Kong

Telephone: 2974 7000
Facsimile: 2974 6999

Herbert Smith

23/F Gloucester Tower
11 Pedder Street

Hong Kong

Telephone: 2845 6639
Facsimile: 2845 9099

AUDITORS
PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central

Hong Kong

Telephone: 2289 8888
Facsimile: 2810 9888

REGISTRAR

Tengis Limited

G/F, BEA Harbour View Centre
56 Gloucester Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Telephone: 2980 1888
Facsimile: 2810 8185

REGISTERED OFFICE

ICBC Tower

122-126 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2534 3333
Facsimile: 2805 1166

Telex: 73264 ICBCA HX

Post Box: GPO Box 872

SWIFT: UBHKHKHH

English version of this Annual Report can be
accessed through the internet at:

http://www.icbcasia.com/html/eng/info.html
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HEAD OFFICE

ICBC Tower

122-126 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2534 3333

Facsimile: 2805 1166

Telex: 73264 ICBCA HX

Post Box: GPO Box 872

SWIFT: UBHKHKHH

Website: http://www.icbcasia.com

Management Office

33/F., Nine Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2588 1188

Facsimile: 2588 1160

Operations Centre

6/F, Citicorp Centre

18 Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2969 1656

Wealth Management Centre
16-20 Bonham Strand East,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2237 8000

BRANCHES

Central Branch

ICBC Tower

122-126 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2534 3333

West Point Branch
242-244 Queen’s Road West,

Hong Kong
Telephone: 2559 8166

Sheung Wan Branch

152-154 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2543 3866
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BRANCHES, SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Wanchai Branch

117-123 Hennessy Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2527 3711

Happy Valley Branch

23 King Kwong Street, Happy Valley
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2575 5720

Causeway Bay Branch

8 Causeway Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2504 5888

Electric Road Branch

113-115 Electric Road, North Point
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2570 0388

City Garden Branch

Shop Unit 23, G/F, Maximall, City Garden
233 Electric Road, North Point,

Hong Kong

Telephone: 2887 3811

Shau Kei Wan Branch
195 Shau Kei Wan Road,

Hong Kong
Telephone: 2568 5730

Tsimshatsui Branch
33-35 Chatham Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2367 1181

Yaumatei Branch

199A Reclamation Street, Yaumatei
Kowloon

Telephone: 2771 6060

Mongkok Branch
777 Nathan Road, Mongkok,

Kowloon

Telephone: 2380 3008



BRANCHES, SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Shamshvuipo Branch

302-304 Lai Chi Kok Road, Shamshuipo
Kowloon

Telephone: 2725 5133

Tokwawan Branch
12-14 Mok Cheong Street, Tokwawan
Kowloon

Telephone: 2714 5151

Kwun Tong Branch
58 Hong Ning Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2797 2683

Tseung Kwan O Branch
Shop 2011, Level 2, Metro City
Phase I, 8 Yan King Road
Tseung Kwan O, Kowloon
Telephone: 3194 3382

Kwai Chung Branch

Unit GO2, Tower A, Regent Centre
63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung
New Territories

Telephone: 2420 9288

Tsuen Wan Branch

339 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan
New Territories

Telephone: 2417 0121

Tuen Mun Branch

217 A-F Central Services Building
Nan Fung Industrial City

18 Tin Hau Road, Tuen Mun,
New Territories

Telephone: 2466 8161

Tai Po Branch
9 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po,
New Territories

Telephone: 2638 3199

OVERSEAS BRANCH
Strathvale House, 3rd Floor

90 North Church Street

Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands
British West Indies

SUBSIDIARIES

ICBC (Asia) Finance Limited

ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited

ICBC (Asia) Futures Limited

ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited

UB China Business Management Co. Ltd.

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
China Ping An Insurance (Hong Kong)
Company Limited

The Tai Ping Insurance Company, Limited
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The Directors of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited (the “Bank”)
have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with the audited accounts of the
Bank and the Group (the Bank together with its subsidiaries hereinafter referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31st December 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking, financial and other
related services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are shown in Note 24 to the

accounts.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and geographical

segments is set out in Note 37 to the accounts.
RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2002 are set out in the

consolidated profit and loss account on page 59.

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HK$0.10 per ordinary and convertible
preference share, totalling HK$82,659,000 which was paid on 27th September 2002.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.25 per ordinary and
convertible preference share, totalling HK$206,648,000.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations amounting to
HK$39,000.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group and of the Bank are set out in
Note 26 to the accounts.

SHARE CAPITAL AND LOAN CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Bank are set out in Note 33 to the

accounts.

As explained in further detail in Note 33 to the accounts, on 21st May 2002, 93,055,000
existing ordinary shares held by The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (“ICBC),
the ultimate holding company, were placed to independent investors and same number
of new ordinary shares of HK$2.00 each were subscribed by the ultimate holding
company at a placing price of HK$8.16 each which represented a premium of HK$6.16
each. These shares rank pari passu with the existing shares.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND LOAN CAPITAL (Continued)

The Directors consider that the placing represented a good opportunity to raise equity
capital for the future business development of the Bank and its subsidiaries and to
broaden the shareholder base and capital base of the Bank. The proceeds were used by

the Bank as general working capital. The Bank has no specific investment plans.
The Bank has also issued subordinated floating rate notes totalling HK$2,045,916,000
during the year. Further details of these notes are set out in Note 32 to the accounts.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Bank during the year are set out in
Note 34 to the accounts.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Bank at 31st December 2002, calculated under section 79B
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted to HK$924,292,000.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out below.

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

FET FET TET TET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
482,429 330,412 150,063 (545,010) 32,957
62,261,989 43,497,229 20,656,987 19,158,247 21,464,943
53,055,912 37,217,910 18,073,674 16,728,550 19,048,902
9,206,077 6,279,319 2,583,313 2,429,697 2,416,041
62,261,989 43,497,229 20,656,987 19,158,247 21,464,943
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE BANK'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, the Bank has not redeemed any of its listed securities. Neither the Bank
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Bank’s listed securities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Dr. Jiang Jianqing (Chairman)
Ms. Wang Lili (appointed as Vice Chairman and Director on 16th December 2002)

Mr. Zhu Qi (Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chen Aiping (appointed on 16th December 2002)

Ms. Zhao Jingfen

Mr. Kwok Kin Hung (appointed on 20th September 2002)

Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B.S. JP*

Mr. Fung, Daniel Richard, SC*

Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec*

Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Chris (resigned on 1st August 2002)

Mr. Kiu Wai Ming (resigned on 14th September 2002)

Dr. Li Lihui (resigned as Vice-Chairman and Director on 12th November 2002)

* Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Wang Lili, Mr. Chen Aiping and Mr. Kwok Kin Hung retire in accordance with
Article 93 of the Bank’s Articles of Association and Dr. Jiang Jianqing retires by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with Articles 94(1) and 94(2)
of the Bank's Articles of Association. All retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election.

The terms of appointments of the Bank’s Independent Non-Executive Directors, being
Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B.S, JP, Mr. Fung, Daniel Richard, SC and Mr.
Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec, will expire when they are required to retire by rotation in accordance
with Articles 94(1) and 94(2) of the Bank’s Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has any existing or proposed service contract with the Bank which is
not expiring or terminable within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Bank or

any of its holding company, subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in

which a director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

ONGOING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year and in the normal course of business, the Group entered into a number

of transactions which in the opinion of the Directors constitute connected transactions

under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The details of these transactions with ICBC and the
fellow subsidiaries are as follows:

Inter-bank lending and borrowing transactions

As part of the Bank’s day-to-day business, inter-bank deposits are placed with,
and inter-bank loans are made to, the ultimate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries. Approximately HK$8,900,628,000 (2001: HK$1,667,003,000) of
inter-bank deposits were placed by the Bank to the ultimate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries as at 31st December 2002. The interest income attributable to
these placements and loans in 2002 was approximately HK$38,298,000 (2001:
HK$19,782,000).

Approximately HK$11,507,647,000 (2001: HK$6,293,676,000) of inter-bank
deposits were placed with the Bank by the ultimate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries as at 31st December 2002. Included in this balance is an amount of
HK$2,105,676,000 (2001: 233,928,000) representing utilisation of a standby
credit facility of HK$6,000,000,000 (2001: HK$6,000,000,000) granted by the
ultimate holding company to the Bank in July 2000 for working capital purposes.
The interest expense attributable to these deposits in 2002 was approximately
HK$153,044,000 (2001: HK$200,733,000).
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ONGOING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

2.

3.

Derivatives transactions

The Bank has entered into interest rate swaps on a back-to-back basis with the
ultimate holding company for hedging against certain assets acquired by the

Bank from the ultimate holding company.

The Bank also enters into various derivatives transactions with the ultimate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries, including interest rate swaps and various types
of options contracts, for the purpose of balance sheet and/or interest rate risk

management or as a result of customer-driven transactions.

The total notional amount of the outstanding derivatives transactions between the
Bank and the ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries as at 31st December
2002 was approximately HK$8,427,159,000 (2001: HK$7,052,449,000). The
interest income and expenses attributable to these transactions in 2002 were
approximately HK$307,313,000 (2001: HK$175,749,000) and HK$345,375,000
(2001: HK$193,353,000) respectively. In 2002, net option premium expense
attributable to these transactions in 2002 was approximately HK$782,000 (2001:
HK$Nil).

Foreign exchange transactions

The Bank also enters into foreign exchange contracts with the ultimate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries in response to foreign exchange risk management
and customer-driven transactions in a similar fashion as mentioned above for
derivatives transactions. The total notional amount of the outstanding foreign
exchange transactions with the ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries
as at 31st December 2002, including spot, forward and swap transactions, was

approximately HK$8,154,000,000 (2001: HK$6,514,671,000).
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ONGOING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4.

Inter-bank capital markets transactions

The Bank enters into the following types of transactions with the uvltimate holding

company and fellow subsidiaries:

(a)  buying and selling debt securities (either issued by independent third parties,
the ultimate holding company or fellow subsidiaries) from and to the ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries in the primary and secondary
markets; and

(b)  buying and selling debt securities on behalf of the ultimate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries.

Approximately HK$749,529,000 (2001: HK$Nil) of debt securities were purchased
from the ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries and approximately
HK$2,548,323,000 (2001: HK$Nil) of debt securities were sold to the ultimate

holding company and fellow subsidiaries, in primary and secondary markets in
2002.

Capital markets transactions

The Bank has entered into various capital markets transactions with the Hong
Kong branch of the ultimate holding company (the “Branch”), the ultimate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries, which include arranging of, participation/sub-
participation in syndicated loans, acquiring and disposing of interests in loans
including syndicated loans, subscription and/or issuance of debt securities and
tax efficient financing. Approximately HK$7,940,249,000 (2001: HK$Nil) of the
Bank's interest in loans including syndicated loans were disposed to the Branch,
the ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries and approximately
HK$1,451,000,000 (2001: HK$1,697,000,000) of the Branch's interest in loans
including syndicated loans were purchased by the Bank in 2002. Immaterial fee
attributable to the above transactions was paid to or received from the Branch in
2002 (2001: HK$Nil).

The Bank has issued and subscribed by the ultimate holding company fixed rate
certificates of deposit with nominal value of HK$700,000,000 (2001: HK$Nil).
The interest expense attributable to these certificates of deposit in 2002 was
approximately HK$13,304,000 (2001: HK$Nil).

In addition, the Bank has issued subordinated floating rate notes totalling
HK$2,045,916,000 (2001: HK$1,208,628,000) in 2002 and were fully
subscribed by the ultimate holding company. The interest expense attributable to
these notes in 2002 was approximately HK$38,263,000 (2001: HK$10,496,000).
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ONGOING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

6.

Forfaiting Transactions

The Bank enters into forfaiting transactions with other banks, including the ultimate
holding company, to buy and sell interests in certain trade finance products only
in relation to bills of exchange secured under letters of credit. Inmaterial fee
income attributable to these transactions was received from the ultimate holding

company in 2002 {2001: HK$Nil).

Management services and premises expenses

The Bank enters into the following types of agreements with the ultimate holding

company and the Branch:

(a)  providing services such as accounting and budgeting, internal audit,

marketing and back office settlement and clearing to the Branch; and

(b)  providing services such as management, administrative and marketing
functions in respect of credit card business of the Branch; and

(c) receiving services such as the Bank’s network, system and computer

operations from the ultimate holding company; and
(d)  using a portion of floor area rented by the Branch.

The total service fee incomes received from the Branch in respect of (a) & (b)
above in 2002 was approximately HK$4,545,000 (2001: HK$2,250,000). The
service fee expenses paid to the ultimate holding company in respect of (c) above
in 2002 was approximately HK$3,502,000 (2001: HK$Nil). The total premises
expense paid to the Branch in 2002 was approximately HK$5,926,000 (2001:
HK$3,095,000).

Three conditional waivers for disclosure and shareholders’ approval requirements
for connected transactions between the Bank, its ultimate holding company and
the fellow subsidiaries under the Listing Rules have been granted by the Stock
Exchange in March 2002, December 2002 and February 2003.
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The independent non-executive directors have reviewed and confirmed that the
connected transactions to which three conditional waivers have been granted by

the Stock Exchange were conducted in the following manner:
(1) Such transactions were:

(i)  entered into by the Bank in the ordinary and usual course of its

business;
(i)  entered into on an arm’s length basis, as applicable;

(iii) conducted either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) if there are
no sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they are on
normal commercial terms, on terms that are fair and reasonable so
far as the Bank and the independent shareholders are concerned;

and

(iv] entered into either (a) in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing such transactions; or (b) (where there are no such
agreements) on terms that are no less favourable than those available

to or from independent third parties, as applicable.

(2) The annual aggregate value of each of the relevant categories of the
connected transactions had not exceeded the annual upper limit or specified
threshold, as applicable.

A letter dated 4th March 2003 was received from the auditors of the Bank
confirming that (i) the transactions received the approval of the Directors; {ii) the
transactions had been entered into at amounts in accordance with the relevant
prices and/or pricing policies of the Bank as disclosed in the annual report; (iii)
the transactions had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; (iv) the annual aggregate value of the
transactions had not exceeded the relevant annual upper limits or specified
threshold, as applicable; and (v) the transactions as specified in 7(c) above had
been entered into on terms no less favourable than terms available to or from
other independent third parties, as applicable.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES

At 31st December 2002, the interests of the Directors and Chief Executive in the shares,
warrants and options of the Bank and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance (“SDI Ordinance”)), as recorded in the
register maintained by the Bank under Section 29 of the SDI Ordinance or as notified to

the Bank were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$2 each in the Bank

BB EE
Number of shares
B AR A&t
Personal interests Total
Mr. Zhu Qi 50,000 50,000

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its holding company, subsidiaries, or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Bank to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or
any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under section 16(1) of the SDI
Ordinance shows that as at 31st December 2002, the Bank had been notified of the
following substantial shareholder’s interests, being 10% or more of the Bank’s issued
share capital. These interests are in addition to those disclosed above in respect of the

Directors.

B8 A

Number of shares

Name of shareholder

398,489,4781% & i ik
398,489,478 ordinary shares
202,219,2180% 7] & i1 18 5t iR
202,219,218 convertible preference shares

The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contfracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any

substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered into or existed during the year.
MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of

the total of interest income and other operating income of the Group.
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EFESHE o REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF BEST PRACTICE OF THE LISTING RULES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group has complied with the Code of Best Practice
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year, except that the Non-
Executive Directors and the Independent Non-Executive Directors are not appointed for
specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting in accordance with the Bank's Articles of Association.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE GUIDELINE ON “FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE BY
LOCALLY INCORPORATED AUTHORIZED INSTITUTIONS”

The Bank has fully complied with the disclosure requirements as set out in the Supervisory
Policy Manual entitled “Financial Disclosure by Locally Incorporated Authorized
Institutions” issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority on 8th November 2002.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties of the Audit
Committee were prepared and adopted with reference to “A Guide for the Formation of
An Audit Committee” published by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants.

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board and the Bank’s
auditors in matters coming within the scope of the Group audit. It also reviews the
effectiveness of both the external and internal audit and of internal controls and risk
evaluation. The Committee comprises Mr. Chen Aiping, Non-Executive Director and the
three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard,
S.B.S., JP, Mr. Fung, Daniel Richard, SC and Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec. Three meetings
were held during the current financial year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Set out below is information disclosed pursuant to paragraph 8.10(2) of the Listing

Rules:

Mr. Chen Aiping is the Director of Xiamen International Bank and ICEA Finance Holdings
Limited.

Mr. Kwok Kin Hung is the Deputy General Manger of the Branch.
AUDITORS

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Dr. Jiang Jianqing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 4th March 2003
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (ASIA) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts set out on pages 59 to 126 which have been prepared

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare accounts which
give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts which give a true and fair view it is

fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those
accounts and to report our opinion to you.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis,
of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the
preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the circumstances of the Bank and the Group, consistently applied and adequately

disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations
which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance as to whether the accounts are free from material misstatement. In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the accounts. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for

our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank
and the Group as at 31st December 2002 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group

for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 4th March 2003
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iR&iA& % « CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

HE-FTT—4F+=H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31st December 2002

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income
Other operating income

Operating income
Operating expenses
Amortisation of goodwill

Operating profit before provisions

Charge for bad and doubtful debts

Operating profit

Net (loss)/gain from disposal of
fixed assets

Net gain on disposal and redemption
of held-to-maturity securities and
non-rading securities

Write back of provision/(provision)
on held-to-maturity securities and
impairment losses on non-trading
securities

Provision on property available for sale

Share of net (losses)/profits of
associated companies

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit attributable to shareholders
Dividends

Earnings per share

— Basic

— Diluted

ft i
Note

2002 2001
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
1,472,029 1,426,765
(782,840) (938,694)
689,189 488,071
390,732 202,919
1,079,921 690,990
(307,260) (289,497
(36,336) (17,749)
736,325 383,744
(181,512) (66,010)
554,813 317,734
(4,885) 1,350
28,269 20,694
1,252 (1,677)
- (10,000)
579,449 328,101
(8,620) 3,480
570,829 331,581
(88,400) (1,169)
482,429 330,412
289,307 198,055
HK$0.70 HK$0.56
HK$0.61 HK$0.56
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ASSETS

Cash and short-term funds

Placements with banks and other
financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months

Trade bills

Certificates of deposit held

Trading securities

Held-to-maturity securities

Advances and other accounts

Prepaid taxation

Non-trading securities

Investments in associated companies

Goodwill

Fixed assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances of banks and
other financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Certificates of deposit issued

Deferred taxation

Provision for taxation

Other accounts and provisions

TOTAL LIABILITIES

CAPITAL RESOURCES

Loan capital

Share capital

Reserves (including proposed final
dividends of HK$206,648,000;
2001: proposed final and special
dividends of HK$161,378,000)

TOTAL CAPITAL RESOURCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

ft i
Note

14

15
16
17
18
19
20

22
23
25
26

27
28
29
30

31

32
33

34

Jiang Jianging Zhu Qi

Chairman

Zhao Jingfen

Managing Director

Kwok Kin Hung

Director Director

2002 2001

FERT FET
HKS’000 HK$'000
15,775,840 6,356,431
1,033,844 517,889
108,280 64,786
1,931,179 2,034,040
38,525 -
6,519,256 3,909,272
33,266,929 28,020,456
- 53
2,023,640 1,138,025
193,306 27,391
656,710 692,208
714,480 736,678
62,261,989 43,497,229
12,334,120 7,053,997
38,751,030 29,705,307
1,429,002 —
6,289 6,289
61,123 —
474,348 452,317
53,055,912 37,217,910
3,254,730 1,208,628
2,259,845 2,073,735
3,691,502 2,996,956
_____ 9,206,077 6279319
62,261,989 43,497,229
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—ZEE 4+ H=+—H As at 31st December 2002

fif &
Note

ASSETS
Cash and short-term funds 14
Placements with banks and other

financial institutions maturing

between one and twelve months 15
Trade bills 16
Certificates of deposit held 17
Trading securities 18
Held-to-maturity securities 19
Advances and other accounts 20
Prepaid taxation
Non-rading securities 22
Investments in associated companies 23
Investments in subsidiaries 24
Goodwill 25
Fixed assets 26
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Deposits and balances of banks

and other financial institutions 27
Deposits from customers 28
Certificates of deposit issued 29
Deferred taxation 30
Provision for taxation
Other accounts and provisions
TOTAL LIABILITIES
CAPITAL RESOURCES
Loan capital 32
Share capital 33
Reserves (including proposed final

dividends of HK$206,648,000;

2001: proposed final and special

dividends of HK$161,378,000) 34
TOTAL CAPITAL RESOURCES
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

RESOURCES
Jiang Jianqing Zhu Qi

Chairman

Zhao Jingfen

Managing Director

Kwok Kin Hung

Director Director

2002 2001

FERT FET
HKS’000 HK$'000
15,775,826 6,356,417
1,033,844 508,142
108,280 64,786
1,931,179 2,034,040
38,525 -
6,925,839 4,602,163
33,056,383 27,518,936
- 53
2,023,134 1,135,190
191,660 14,508
40,247 40,257
656,710 692,208
714,475 736,668
62,496,102 43,703,368
12,334,120 7,102,093
38,979,346 29,890,577
1,429,002 —
6,289 6,289
61,123 —
513,193 495,975
53,323,073 37,494,934
3,254,730 1,208,628
2,259,845 2,073,735
3,658,454 2,926,071
_____ 9,173,029 6,208,434
62,496,102 43,703,368
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FEER2EEHFR - CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HE-TT—4F+f=H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 3 1st December 2002
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g3
Note
Total equity as at 1st January
Change in fair value of non-trading
securities 34

Release/(share) of revaluation deficit

of non+rading securities held by

an associated company 34
Exchange difference arising on

translation of the financial statement

of a foreign associated company 34

Net (losses)/gains not recognised
in the profit and loss account

Profit attributable to shareholders 34

Investment revaluation reserve realised
on disposal of non-trading securities 34

Dividends 34
Issue of ordinary shares

Issue of convertible non-cumulative
preference shares

Share issue expenses 34

Total equity as at 31st December

2002 2001
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
_____ 5,070,691 2583313
(108,388) 141,076
1,990 (122)
(21) =
(106,419) 140,954
482,429 330,412
781 (8,632)
(244,037) (95,290}
759,329 603,356
- 1,516,644
(11,427) (66)
5,951,347 5,070,691
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HE-FTT—4F+=H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31st December 2002

Operating profit
Charge for bad and doubtful debts
Amortisation of goodwill
Interest expense on loan capital
Depreciation
Provision on property available for sale
Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years
Net gain on disposal of held-to-maturity
securities and non-rading securities
Dividend received from listed investments
Dividend received from unlisted
investments

Operating profit before working
capital changes

(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:

Treasury bills maturing beyond three
months

Placements with banks and other
financial institutions maturing
beyond three months

Trade bills

Certificates of deposits held

Held-to-maturity securities

Trading securities

Non-trading securities

Advances and other accounts

Increase/(decrease) in operating
liabilities:

Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions
maturing beyond three months

Deposits from customers

Certificates of deposit issued

Other accounts and provisions

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
operating activities before taxation

Net Hong Kong profits tax
(paid)/refunded

Overseas tax paid

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
operating activities

ft i
Note

2002 2001
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
554,813 317,734
181,512 66,010
36,336 17,749
38,263 10,496
25,479 24,884
- (10,000}
21,735 6,280
28,269 20,694
(6,299) (679)
(1,678) (780)
878,430 452,388
(15,850) 67,299
287,503 1,310,158
(43,984) 70,516
102,861 904,991
(2,609,984) 251,503
(38,525) (1,064,572)
(991,970) (51,222)
(5,458,981) (6,654,193)
(210,439) (8,058,847)
9,045,723 10,447,647
1,429,002 (175,019)
22,031 30,135
2,395,817 (2,469,216)
(27,224) 4,681
- (1,594)
2,368,593 (2,466,129)
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Investing activities

Cash consideration paid for the
acquisition of the commercial
banking business of the Branch
(“Acquisition”)

Cash consideration paid for the
acquisition of an associated
company

Payment of Acquisition-related expense

Purchase of fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Dividend received from listed
investments

Dividend received from unlisted
investments

Dividend received from an associated
company

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Financing activities

Issue of loan capital

Issue of share capital

Share issue expenses

Interest paid on loan capital
Dividend paid on ordinary shares
Dividend paid on convertible

non-cumulative preference shares

Net cash inflow from financing
activities

Effects of foreign exchange
differences

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
Tst January

Cash and cash equivalents at
31st December

ft i
Note

42(b)

2002 2001

FET FET
HK$/000 HK$'000
- (300,000)

(177,152) -
_ (9,957)
(12,327) (27,128)

4,161 11,424

6,299 679

1,678 780

3,750 =
_..(173,591) (324,202
2,045,916 628,628
759,329 =
(11,427) (66)
(38,263) (10,496)
(179,327) (85,179)
(64,710) (10,111)

_____ 2,511,518 5227776
_____________ 186 =
4,706,706 (2,267,555)
(184,606) 2,082,949
4,522,100 (184,606)
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iR B Pt & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

HE-FTT—4F+=H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31st December 2002

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking, financial and
other related services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are shown in
Note 24 to the accounts.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention as
modified by the revaluation of certain bank premises and properties, and
investments in securities, and in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and comply with Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”) issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants (“HKSA”).

In the current year, the Group has adopted the following SSAPs issued by
the HKSA which are effective for accounting periods commencing on or
after 1st January 2002:

SSAPT (revised)

Presentation of financial statements

SSAP15 (revised) Cash flow statements

SSAP34 (revised)

Employee benefits

The changes to the Group’s accounting policies and the effect of adopting
these new policies are set out in the following paragraphs.

Consolidation

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the Bank and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) made up to 31st December. Subsidiaries are
those entities in which the Group controls the composition of the board of
directors, controls more than half of the voting power or holds more than
half of the issued share capital. The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated profit and loss
account from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group
are eliminated on consolidation.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents the difference
between the proceeds of the sale and the Group's share of its net assets
together with any goodwill/negative goodwill taken to reserves and which
was not previously charged or recognised in the consolidated profit and
loss account.

In the Bank’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost

less provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Bank on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Associated companies

An associated company is a company, not being a subsidiary, in which an
equity interest is held for the long term and significant influence is exercised
in its management.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group's share of the
results of the associated companies for the year, and the consolidated
balance sheet includes the Group's share of the net assets of the associated
companies including goodwill (net of accumulated amortisation) on
acquisition.

In the Bank’s balance sheet the investments in associated companies are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of the
associated companies are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Equity accounting is discontinued when the carrying amount of the investment
in an associate reaches zero, unless the Group has incurred obligations or
guaranteed obligations in respect of the associated companies.

Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognised in the profit and loss account as it accrues,
except in the case of doubtful debts where interest is credited to a suspense
account which is netted in the balance sheet against the relevant balances.

Fees and commission income are recognised when earned, unless they
relate to transactions involving an interest rate risk or other risks which
extend beyond the current period, in which case they are amortised over
the relevant period.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is

established.

Advances to customers, banks and other financial institutions

Advances to customers, banks and other financial institutions are reported
on the balance sheet at the principal amount outstanding net of provisions
for bad and doubtful debts. Advances to banks and other financial institutions
include placements with banks and other financial institutions for more than
one year. Cash rebates granted in relation to residential mortgage loans
are capitalised and amortised on a straight line basis over the prepayment
penalty period not exceeding three years.

All advances are recognised when cash is advanced to borrowers.
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F+=H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 3 1st December 2002

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(g)

(h)

Provision for bad and doubtful debts

The Group internally classifies loans and advances into five main categories:
pass, special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss. The classification of
loans and advances is largely based on the assessment of the borrower’s
capacity to repay and on the degree of doubt about the collectibility of
interest and/or principal. The periods that payments of interest and/or
principal have been overdue are also taken into account when classifying
the loans and advances.

Provisions are made against specific loans and advances as and when the
Directors have doubts on the ultimate recoverability of principal or interest
in full. Specific provision is made to reduce the carrying value of the asset,
taking into account available collateral, to the expected net realisable value
based on the Directors’ assessment of the potential losses on those identified
loans and advances on a case-by-case basis. Where it is not possible to
reliably estimate the loss, the Group applies pre-determined provisioning
levels to the unsecured portion of loans and advances based on the
classification of the respective loans and advances.

In addition, amounts have been set aside as a general provision for bad
and doubtful debts. Both specific and general provisions are deducted form
“Advances and other accounts” and “Trade bills” in the balance sheet.
When there is no realistic prospect of recovery, the outstanding debt is
written off.

Repossessed assets

Assets acquired by repossession of collateral for realisation continue to be
reported as advances. Provision is made on the shortfall between the
expected sales proceeds from realisation of the repossessed assets and the
outstanding advances.

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising in these
cases are dealt with in the profit and loss account.

The balance sheet of associated companies expressed in foreign currencies
are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date
whilst the profit and loss account is translated at an average rate for the
period. Exchange differences are dealt with as a movement in reserves.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Fixed assets

(i)

(i)

(i)

Bank premises and properties

Bank premises and properties are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated impairment losses and depreciation calculated to write
off the assets over their estimated useful lives on a straight line basis
as follows:

Unexpired terms of the lease
Lesser of period of lease or 50 years

Leasehold land
Buildings

Leasehold improvements Lesser of period of lease or 10 years

Effective 31st December 1994, no further revaluations of bank
premises and properties have been carried out. The Group places
reliance on paragraph 80 of SSAP 17 which provides exemption
from the need to make regular revaluations of bank premises and
properties.

Furniture and equipment

Furniture and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
and less depreciation calculated to write off the assets on a straight
line basis over their estimated useful lives of between 4 and 10
years.

Impairment and gain or loss on disposal of fixed assets

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources of
information are considered to assess whether there is any indication
that bank premises and properties, and furniture and equipment are
impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised
to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses
are recognised in the profit and loss account except where the asset
is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does not exceed the
revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which case it is treated as
a revaluation decrease.

The gain or loss on disposal of a fixed asset is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in the profit and loss account. Any revaluation
reserve balance remaining attributable to the relevant asset is
transferred to retained earnings and is shown as a movement in
reserves.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Investments in securities

(i)

(i)

(i)

Held-to-maturity securities

Held-to-maturity securities are dated debt securities which the Group
has the expressed intention and ability to hold to maturity. These
securities are stated at cost adjusted for the amortisation of premiums
or discounts arising on acquisition over the periods to maturity, less
provision for diminution in their value. The carrying amounts of
individual held-to-maturity securities or holdings of the same securities
are reviewed at the balance sheet date in order to assess the credit
risk and whether the carrying amounts are expected to be recovered.
Provisions are made for the amount of the carrying value which the
Group does not expect to recover and are recognised as an expense
in the profit and loss account as they arise.

The amortisation of premiums and discounts arising on acquisition of
dated debt securities is included as part of interest income and interest
expense. Profits or losses on realisation of held-to-maturity securities
are accounted for in the profit and loss account as they arise.

Trading securities

Trading securities are securities which were acquired for the purpose
of generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price and are
stated at fair value. Changes in fair value of trading securities are
recognised in the profit and loss account as they arise. Profits and
losses on disposal of trading securities, representing the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amounts, are
recognised in the profit and loss account as they arise.

Non-trading securities

Non-trading securities include debt securities held for liquidity purposes
which are held primarily to maintain the liquidity ratio as defined in
the Fourth Schedule of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and other
debt and equity securities which are not held for trading purposes.
Non-trading securities are stated at fair value on the balance sheet.
Changes in fair value of non-trading securities are recognised in the
investment revaluation reserve until the security is sold or determined
to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss representing
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant security, together with any surplus/deficit transferred
from the investment revaluation reserve, is included in the profit and
loss account.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

(1)

(m)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair
value of the Group's share of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary and
associated company at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life
not exceeding 20 years.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is accounted for at the current taxation rate in respect of
timing differences between profit as computed for taxation purposes and
profit as stated in the accounts to the extent that a liability or an asset is
expected to be payable or recoverable in the foreseeable future.

Finance and operating leases
(i)  Finance leases and hire purchase contracts

The amounts due from customers in respect of hire purchase contracts
and finance leases are recorded in the balance sheet as “Advance
and other accounts” at the amounts of net investments, which represent
the total rentals receivable under hire purchase contracts and finance
leases less unearned finance income. Finance income implicit in the
rentals receivable less loan origination costs is credited to the profit
and loss account over the hire period or the lease period as
appropriate so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of return on the net investment for each accounting period.
Dealer commission paid for hire purchase contracts or finance leases
is amortised on a straight line basis over the terms of the leases.

(i)  Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Rentals applicable to such operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the profit and loss account
on a straight line basis over the lease term.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Off-balance sheet financial instruments

Off-balance sheet financial instruments include derivatives, such as futures,
forwards, swaps, options and other transactions undertaken by the Group
in the foreign exchange, interest rate, equity and other markets. The
accounting for these instruments is dependent upon whether the transactions
are undertaken for trading purposes or to hedge risk.

Derivative financial instruments other than those transacted to hedge risk
are deemed to be held for trading purposes.

Transactions undertaken for trading purposes are re-measured to their fair
value. Fair values are obtained periodically from various sources, including
quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models and option pricing
models as appropriate. The gain or loss arising is recognised in the profit
and loss account.

Unrealised gains on trading derivatives which are marked to market are
included in “Advances and other accounts”. Unrealised losses on transactions
which are marked to market are included in “Other accounts and provisions”.

On the date a derivative contract is entered into, the Group may designate
certain derivative transactions as hedges. Derivatives are classified as a
hedge when the following criteria are met:

(i)  formal documentation of the hedging instrument, hedged item, and
hedging relationship is prepared; and

(i)  the hedge is documented showing that it is expected to be highly
effective in reducing the price or interest rate risk in the hedged item
throughout the reporting period.

Transactions designated as hedges are valued on an equivalent basis to the
assets, liabilities or net positions that they are hedging. Any profit or loss is
recognised in the profit and loss account on the same basis as that arising
from the related assets, liabilities or net positions.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Off-balance sheet financial instruments (Continued)

If the derivative transaction no longer meets the criteria for a hedge set out
above, the derivative is deemed to be held for trading purposes and is
accounted for as set out above.

Derivative transactions are offset only when the Group has the ability to
insist on net settlement such as by means of entering into a master netting
agreement or other legally enforceable arrangements. Any right to insist on
a net settlement that is contingent is only taken into account when the
Group is able to enforce net settlement in all situations of default by the
other party or parties including insolvency of any parties to the contract,
and the ability to insist on a net settlement is assured beyond doubt.

Derivative transactions are not offset unless the related seftlement currencies
are the same, or are denominated in freely convertible currencies for which
quoted exchange rates are available in an active market.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
of the amount can be made. Where the Group expects a provision to be
reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain.

Provision is made when it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will arise and the amounts can be reliably estimated.

Employee benefits
()  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(q)

Employee benefits (Continved)
(i)  Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement scheme under
the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
and another defined contribution retirement scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”)
for those employees of the Group who are eligible and have elected
to participate in the schemes. The Group’s contributions to the ORSO
Scheme are made based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
basic salaries and those made to the MPF Scheme are made based
on a percentage of the eligible employees’ relevant income as defined
in the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. These
contributions are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees of the Group who leave
the schemes prior to vesting fully in the contributions. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged
either in providing services (business segment) or in providing services
within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.
Segments with a majority of revenue earned from services provided to
external customers and whose revenue, results or assets are 10 per cent or
more of all the segments are reported separately.

In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting the Group has
determined that business segments be presented as the primary reporting
format and geographical as the secondary reporting format.

Transactions between the business segments are on normal commercial
terms and conditions. Funds are ordinarily reallocated between segments,
resulting in funding cost transfers disclosed in operating income. Interest
charged for these funds is based on the Group’s funding cost. There are no
other material items of income or expense between the business segments.
Segment assets and liabilities comprise operating assets and liabilities,
being the majority of the balance sheet but excluding taxation.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to
acquire segment assets (both tangible and intangible) that are expected to
be used for more than one financial year.

Descriptions of business and geographical segments are set out in Note 37.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
accounts. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the
accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from
the date of acquisition including cash, balances with banks and other
financial institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and certificates of
deposit.

Related parties

For the purposes of these accounts, parties are considered to be related to
the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
parties or exercise significant influence over the parties in making financial
or operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and the parties
are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related
parties may be individuals or other entities.

INTEREST INCOME

Interest income includes interest from investments in securities amounting to

HK$389,695,000 (2001: HK$289,099,000).
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OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2002 2001

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

Fees and commission income 331,631 166,786
Less: fees and commission expense (2,363) (3,331)
Net fees and commission income 329,268 163,455
Net gain from foreign exchange activities 8,233 11,646
Net gain from trading securities 2,271 14,033

Dividend income from investments in
securities:

— Listed investments 6,299 679

— Unlisted investments 1,678 780
Others 42,983 12,326
390,732 202,919

The Group has entered into a coupon strip transaction involving a special purpose
partnership in which the Group is the majority general partner. The Group does
not control the partnership which was set up solely to invest in bond interest
coupons, and consequently the partnership is not consolidated in the Group's
accounts. As at 31st December 2002, the Group's investment in such partnership
amounted to HK$39,738,000 (2001: HK$Nil) and is included in “Advances and
other accounts” in the balance sheet. The total assets and liabilities of the
partnership are amounted to HK$170,984,000 and HK$111,140,000 respectively
as at 31st December 2002 (2001: HK$Nil).

The return from this investment represented tax benefits in the form of a share of
tax losses of the partnership net of the expected loss on disposal of the investments
and is included in “Others” of “Other operating income” amounted to
HK$7,094,000 for the year ended 31st December 2002 (2001: HK$Nil). The
Group’s Hong Kong profits tax charged for the year set out in Note 9 is the gross
tax figure before taking into account of the benefit of the share of tax losses of
the partnership.
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OPERATING EXPENSES

2002 2001
FET FE T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Staff costs:
— Salaries and other costs 177,058 173,064
— Redundancy payment 269 40
— Retirement benefit costs (Note 13) 11,655 9,532
188,982 182,636
Premises and equipment expenses,
excluding depreciation:
— Rental of premises 11,845 9,049
— Others 20,881 16,821
Depreciation 25,479 24,884
Auditors’ remuneration 1,084 1,512
Other operating expenses 58,989 54,595
307,260 289,497
CHARGE FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS
2002 2001
FET FHE T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Specific provisions
— new provisions 195,854 237,682
— releases (50,558) (165,392)
— recoveries (21,735) (6,280)
123,561 66,010
General provisions 57,951 —
Net charge to profit and loss account
(Note 21) 181,512 66,010
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NET GAIN ON DISPOSAL AND REDEMPTION OF HELD-TO-MATURITY
SECURITIES AND NON-TRADING SECURITIES

2002 2001
FET FHE T
HK$’000 HK$°000

Net gain on disposal and redemption
of held-to-maturity securities* 8,228 5,748

Net gain on disposal of non-trading

securities 20,041 14,946
28,269 20,694

During the year, the Bank sold a held-to-maturity security with an amortised cost of
approximately HK$311,589,000 to better control concentration of credit risk related
to the issuer of the security.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the Directors of the Bank
during the year are as follows:

2002 2001
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fees 689 730
Other emoluments:
Basic salaries, housing allowances,
other allowances and
benefits-in-kind 7,615 8,222
Discretionary bonuses 4,240 4,130
Contributions to pension schemes for
Directors 703 649
13,247 13,731
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8 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Directors’ fees disclosed above include HK$450,000 (2001: HK$390,000)
paid to Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The emoluments of the Directors fall within the following bands:

Emolument bands EEAH
Number of Directors

2002 2001
HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 8 6
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 —
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 - 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 - 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 1 =
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 1 2
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 1 —

There was no arrangement under which any Director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the year.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for
the year include three Directors (2001: three) whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the remaining
two (2001: two) individuals during the year are as follows:

2002 2001
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Basic salaries, housing allowances,
other allowances and benefits
in kind 2,850 2,020
Bonuses 2,190 2,600
Contributions to pension schemes 263 173
5,303 4,793
The emoluments fell within the following bands:
Emolument bands AH
Number of individuals
2002 2001
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 —
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 - 2
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 1 —
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TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16% (200

1: 16%) on the

estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated profit and loss account

represents:

2002 2001
FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$°000

Bank and subsidiaries
Hong Kong profits tax (88,376) —
Overseas taxation - (1,244)
(Under)/over-provisions in prior years (24) 75
(88,400) (1,169)

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the accounts of the Bank to

the extent of HK$522,235,000 (2001: HK$318,023,000).

DIVIDENDS
2002 2001
FET FHE T
HK$’000 HK$°000
Interim, paid of HK$0.10
(2001: HK$0.05) per ordinary share 62,437 26,566
Interim, paid of HK$0.10 (2001: HK$0.05)
per convertible preference share 20,222 10,111
Final, proposed of HK$0.25
(2001: HK$0.17) per ordinary share
(Nofe) 156,093 90,324
Final, proposed of HK$0.25
(2001: HK$0.17) per convertible
preference share (Note) 50,555 34,377
Special, proposed of HK$Nil
(2001: HK$0.05) per ordinary share - 26,566
Special, proposed of HK$Nil (2001:
HK$0.05) per convertible preference share - 10,111
289,307 198,055
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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DIVIDENDS (Continued)

Note: At a meeting held on 4th March 2003, the Directors proposed a final dividend of
HK$0.25 per ordinary and convertible preference share. These proposed dividends
are not reflected as dividends payable in these accounts, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31st December 2003.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to
shareholders of HK$482,429,000 (2001: HK$330,412,000) less dividends
payable on convertible preference shares of HK$70,777,000 (2001:
HK$54,599,000) and on 588,681,975 (2001: 491,000,336) shares, being the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to
shareholders of HK$482,429,000 (2001: HK$330,412,000) and on 790,901,193
(2001: 591,832,933) shares, being the weighted average number of ordinary
shares and convertible preference shares in issue during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to the profit and loss account represents
contributions payable by the Group to the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme
(the “Schemes”).

Under the ORSO scheme, the Group's contributions are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the Schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Forfeited contributions totalling HK$1,300,000 (2001:
HK$2,190,000) were utilised during the year leaving HK$12,000 (2001:
HK$11,000) available at the year end to reduce future contributions.

No contributions were payable to the Schemes at the year end (2001: HK$Nil).
The assets of the Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.
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14 CASH AND SHORT-TERM FUNDS

F&EE FBAT
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FERT FE T FET FHE T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
EfRe RIRITH Cash and balances with
EihomgEe banks and other financial
&1 institutions 161,525 176,625 161,511 176,611
EHBATR Money at call and short
notice 15,402,917 5,892,102 15,402,917 5,892,102
&% (BN Treasury bills (including
EESRRE) Exchange Fund Bills) 211,398 287,704 211,398 287,704
15,775,840 6,356,431 15,775,826 6,356,417
BEZEAANMAT : An analysis of treasury bills held is as follows:
FEBRFRAT
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FHE T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEREE RBERA Held-to-maturity, at amortised cost:
— REELT — Llisted in Hong Kong 38,976 -
— 3kEm — Unlisted 172,422 287,704
211,398 287,704
FhERZTE Market value of listed treasury bills 39,371 =

BEEiE+-A=+—BE3EA I FIeHE
My BBRANET :

AT
—FHUTEBRBA=MEA
AFEFATERE—F

The maturity profile of treasury bills analysed by the remaining period as at 31st
December to the contractual maturity dates is as follows:

Three months or less
One year or less, but over three months
Five years or less, but over one year

FEEBRART
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FE T
HK$’000 HK$°000
92,844 185,000
39,724 83,000
78,830 19,704
211,398 287,704
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15 —Z+_EAARIMzRTEXRA

fEREB2ER

RITRAZEREM
TRBEL
73K

RERBERE
(ftez21)

Placements with banks
and other financial
institutions

15 PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

MATURING BETWEEN ONE AND TWELVE MONTHS

Specific provision for bad and

doubtful debts (Note 21)

—ET_BARNBAZRTRERE LS
REBERET A=+ —BZE5HA
ERBBEZARIFTWOT

=EARKAT
—FHAT

BEB=1A4
3 5 IR 5

16 BXRE

AXRR
RE IR B
(ftez21)

Three months or less
One year or less, but
over three months

Undated

16

82 HEITIEHT (EM ERLE « —BBR-FFER

r& FBAT

Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FET FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
1,033,844 547,130 1,033,844 508,142
- (29,241) - -
1,033,844 517,889 1,033,844 508,142

The maturity profile of placements with banks and other financial institutions
maturing between one and twelve months analysed by the remaining period as at
31st December to the contractual maturity dates is as follows:

~EH R IT
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1,033,844 308,142 1,033,844 308,142
- 200,000 - 200,000
- 38,988 - =
1,033,844 547,130 1,033,844 508,142
TRADE BILLS
REBRAKNEBIT
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FERT FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Trade bills 109,374 65,390
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
(Note 21) (1,094) (604)
108,280 64,786
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17 FBENR 17  CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT HELD
AEBRAET
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
RE 'Jﬁqﬁ P RN Held-to-maturity, at amortised cost:
— REBUIMIE £ — Listed outside Hong Kong 167,640 89,915
— LT — Unlisted 1,226,680 1,174,747
1,394,320 ...1,264,662
EBEEERBRZES  BATE: Non-trading securities, at fair value:
— LW — Unlisted ....536,859 769,378
1,931,179 2,034,040
T EmERBEME Market value of listed certificates of
deposit held 168,035 94,644
I ERERT-_A=t—BZ3HAIt The maturity profile of certificates of deposit held analysed by the remaining
RABEZBRAMMAT : period as at 31st December to the contractual maturity dates is as follows:
AEBRAET
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
“EAHNUT Three months or less 89,985 184,038
—FRUTEERB=MA One year or less, but over three months 642,976 570,251
AFERUTEBR—F Five years or less, but over one year 1,198,218 1,279,751
1,931,179 2,034,040
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18 HEEERARZES

BAFHE :

&%
— kLMW

BIEBEERBRZBEFRBITEL
DWWT -
— ¥

FIEEEMARCEFRT_A=1T—RE
MR LERANRZBRAMOT ¢

LAFEHUTMERB—F

84 HEIBRTEMERAE « —BB-FFH

18 TRADING SECURITIES

FEERERST
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FHE T
HK$’000 HK$°000
At fair valve:
Debt securities
— Unlisted 38,525 —
Trading securities are analysed by issuer
as follows:
— Corporate entities 38,525 —

The maturity profile of trading debt securities analysed by the remaining period
as at 31st December to the contractual maturity dates is as follows:

FEEREARST
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FE T
HK$’000 HK$°000
Five years or less, but over one year 38,525 —




19

REIAHzES

ERES
5 4 AR
— REBED

— REAEUN
WE Em

FLHES
e
RIERE

19

Listed securities, at
amortised cost
— Listed in Hong
Kong
— Listed outside
Hong Kong

Unlisted securities,
at amortised cost
Provision for diminution
in value

Market value of
listed securities

REIR ERET-_A=T—RBESEH
MBI RBAEZBRAOMAT

=EARKAT
—FHAT
BiE®=1A
REFEHINUAT
BB E—F
HRRF

Three months or less
One year or less, but
over three months
Five years or less, but

over one year
Over five years
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HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES

r& RRIT

Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FHE T FET TFHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
116,363 92,051 116,363 92,051
1,930,279 1,320,910 1,930,279 1,320,910
.2,046,642 1,412,961 2,046,642 1,412,961
4,472,614 2,497,559 4,918,913 3,189,202
- (1,248) (39,716) -
_ 4,472,614 2490311 4,879,197 _..3,189,202
6,519,256 3,909,272 6,925,839 4,602,163
2,134,466 1,412,231 2,134,466 1,412,231

The maturity profile of held-to-maturity securities analysed by the remaining period
as at 31st December to the contractual maturity dates is as follows:

r& RRIT

Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FHE T FET TFHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
155,426 44,967 155,426 44,967
1,258,716 378,966 1,258,716 378,966
3,561,674 2,141,955 3,968,257 2,834,846
1,543,440 1,343,384 1,543,440 1,343,384
6,519,256 3,909,272 6,925,839 4,602,163
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19 BZEEB2EF ) 19 HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES (Confinued)

RENRZBFRETEZONMAT

Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by issuer as follows:

rEH BT
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FET FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R R Central governments and
R RiReT central banks 143,144 136,760 143,144 136,760
BITREM Banks and other financial
RS institutions 2,880,660 1,610,947 2,880,660 1,610,947
1S Corporate entities 3,495,452 2,161,565 3,902,035 2,854,456
6,519,256 3,909,272 6,925,839 4,602,163
20 EXRREMEKE 20 ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
rEH ERIT
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
REEX Advances to customers 32,409,985 28,086,680 32,073,558 27,024,693
REBREEE Provision for bad and doubtful
(ffat21) debts (Note 21)
B — General (273,387) (215,926) (271,728) (213,343)
— 5 — Specific (270,127) (965,669) (130,109) (399,195)
31,866,471 26,905,085 31,671,721 26,412,155
RITAEREAM Advances to banks and other
fimanls financial nstttions 354994 299,531 354,994 299,531
A FE Accrued interest 306,140 249,146 301,206 236,464
HAibBRIE Other accounts 740,766 577,183 729,465 572,593
FEAHFI B R H A Provision against accrued
BRIE R interest and other accounts
— IE (H321) — Specific (Note 21) (1,442) (10,489) (1,003) (1,807)
1,045,464 815840 1,029,668 _....807,250
33,266,929 28,020,456 33,056,383 27,518,936

HRRE B A HE%%210,000,000%
T (ZEZ—% 1210,000,000% ) °

Included in other accounts is a property available for sale of HK$210,000,000
(2001: HK$210,000,000).
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20 ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

The gross amount of non-performing loans, which represents advances on which

interest is being placed in suspense or on which interest accrual has ceased, is
analysed as follows:

Non-performing loans

Specific provisions made in
respect of such advances

Amount of interest in suspense

X B

rEE BT

Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FHT FERT FHET
HK$7000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000
738,932 1,929,473 473,242 1,042,463
267,275 955,944 127,257 389,470
157,980 81,495 49,719 91,555

collateral in respect of such advances.

M2’

purchase contracts, analysed as follows:

Gross investment receivable:

Not later than one year

Later than one year and not
later than five years

Later than five years

Undated

Unearned future finance
income

Net investment

At 31st December 2002, there were no non-performing loans in respect of advances
to banks and other financial institutions (2001: HK$Nil).

Non-performing loans to customers of the Group and the Bank represent 2.3%
(2001: 6.8%) and 1.5% (2001: 3.8%) of the advances to customers of the Group
and the Bank respectively.

The above specific provisions were made after taking into account the value of

Advances to customers include investment in finance lease receivables and hire

rEE FBAT

Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FET FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
214,535 160,084 214,535 160,084
715,126 563,122 715,126 563,122
1,922,430 1,446,098 1,922,430 1,446,098
- 832 - _
2,852,091 2,170,136 2,852,091 2,169,304
(756,631) (600,163) (756,631) (600,163)
2,095,460 1,569,973 2,095,460 1,569,141
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20 EXREMEE @)

20 ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

BEHERHEBANZREFENIMM

T

—FLTF
—FLE
RAFAT
TENE
Ri=3: 8t

Not later than one year
Later than one year and no

later than five years
Later than five years

Undated

AALEREREREBANZRELHRE

ZERFRBELTEK -

R-_BE_FE+-_A=+—BzEXEE
TEMEAERABANZRERERE
#H(ZZEZT—4 : 832,000 1) °

EFEFEtT _A=+—HEALNEHA
EFRBREZHBRAMMAT

BRERKEHEEER
=BAKIUAT
—FEHUT
BHRB=MEA
REHUT
BRBE—F
BBAF

b 4 IR 548

Repayable on demand

Three months or less

One year or less, but over
three months

Five years or less, but over
one year

Over five years

Undated

88 HEIBRT(EMERAIT « —ET=_FFH

The net investment in finance lease receivables and hire purchase contracts is

analysed as follows:

2y | FBAT

Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET TET FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
134,767 123,875 134,767 123,875

t

448,175 422,109 448,175 422,109
1,512,518 1,023,157 1,512,518 1,023,157
- 832 - -
2,095,460 1,569,973 2,095,460 1,569,141

The unguaranteed residual value included in the gross investment in finance lease
receivables and hire purchase contracts above was considered to be immaterial.

No allowance for uncollectible investment in finance lease receivables and hire
purchase contracts is included in the provision for loan losses as at 31st December
2002 (2001: HK$832,000).

The maturity profile of advances to customers analysed by the remaining period
as at 31st December to the contractual maturity dates is as follows:

rEE AT

Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FHET FE T FHET FE T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
1,385,880 1,003,023 1,385,880 1,003,016
3,574,822 2,804,398 3,574,822 2,802,928
2,403,406 1,917,592 2,403,406 1,915,819
12,777,221 13,439,579 12,706,484 13,347,791
11,520,941 6,892,628 11,520,941 6,812,688
747,715 2,029,460 482,025 1,142,451
32,409,985 28,086,680 32,073,558 27,024,693
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20 ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

The maturity profile of advances to banks and other financial institutions analysed
by the remaining period as at 31st December to the contractual maturity dates is

T as follows:
EEBERAET
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000
AREREFEREER Repayable on demand - 70,000
ZEASKUAT Three months or less 82,458 46,924
—FH U TEBBA=EA One year or less, but over three months 122,536 22,607
AFEFUATERBBR—F Five years or less, but over one year 150,000 160,000
354,994 299,531
RERBRE 21 PROVISION FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS
rEH Group
2002
REREE g2
Provision for bad and doubtful debts L
E$ | - At Suspended
Specific General Total interest
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
R—A—Bz#&& Balance as at 1st January 1,005,399 216,530 1,221,929 281,495
MsH ez Amounts written off (879,126) - (879,126) (110,121)
WEREFE Recoveries of advances written
EMIHE % off in previous years 21,735 - 21,735 -
FREE (Hi6) Charge for the year (Note ¢) 123,561 57,951 181,512 -
REEEZAE Interest suspended during the year - - - 96,558
WE gL E Suspended interest recovered - - - (109,971)
xR H B Exchange and other adjustments - - - 19
W+ =B =+—HZ4&% Balance as at 31st December 271,569 274,481 546,050 157,980
MrE Deducted from:
BEZRRE (Ki16) Trade bills (Note 16) - 1,094 1,094
BEPEXR (K:t20) Advances to customers (Note 20) 270,127 273,387 543,514
FEE A S R E A Accrued interest and other
8RIE (fifiF20) accounts (Note 20) 1,442 - 1,442
271,569 274,481 546,050
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21 REEBE® 21 PROVISION FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS (Continved)
&8 (&) Group (Continued)
2001
REZRBE ¥
Provision for bad and doubtful debts B
=] —& #at Suspended
Specific General Total interest
FET FET FAT FAT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R—A—Hz&e# Balance as at 1st January 1,613,570 124,000 1,737,570 335,551
BENTT Acquired from the Branch 29,335 92,530 121,865 =
MsyEn s Amounts written off (709,796) - (709,796) (156,346)
WEBTEE Recoveries of advances written
B E & off in previous years 6,280 - 6,280 -
FREE (K at6) Charge for the year (Note 6) 66,010 - 66,010 -
AEEELFHE Interest suspended during the year = - - 248,183
W e &R A S Suspended interest recovered = = = (145,893)
R+-_A=+—-HBZ Balance as at 31st December
Feg 23 1,005,399 216,530 1,221,929 281,495
nEa Deducted from:
BMEZRE (K:16) Trade bills (Note 16) = 604 604
BFEER (:20) Advances to customers (Note 20) 965,669 215,926 1,181,595
BOTREREMER Placements with banks and other
W27 (MF15)  financial institutions (Note 15) 29,241 - 29,241
FERT M B R E A Accrued interest and other
BRIE (#15220) accounts (Note 20) 10,489 = 10,489
1,005,399 216,530 1,221,929
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21 PROVISION FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS (Confinued)

Bank

Balance as at st January
Acquired from a subsidiary
Amounts written off
Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years
Charge for the year
Interest suspended during the year
Suspended interest recovered
Exchange and other adjustments

Balance as at 31st December

Deducted from:

Trade bills (Note 16)

Advances to customers (Note 20)

Accrued interest and other
accounts (Note 20)

Balance as at 1st January
Acquired from the Branch
Amounts written off
Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years
Charge/(credit) for the year
Interest suspended during the year
Suspended interest recovered

Balance as at 31st December

Deducted from:

Trade bills (Note 16)

Advances to customers (Note 20)

Accrued interest and other
accounts (Note 20)
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2002
RERBE g
Provision for bad and doubtful debts HE
EHEH — & wst Suspended
Specific General Total interest
FERT FERT FET FET
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
401,002 213,947 614,949 91,555
837 56 893 97
(374,034) - (374,034) (36,742)
2,290 - 2,290 -
101,017 58,819 159,836 -
- - - 50,073
- - - (55,272)
- - - 8
131,112 272,822 403,934 49,719
- 1,094 1,094
130,109 271,728 401,837
1,003 - 1,003
131,112 272,822 403,934
2001
REREE Fi
Provision for bad and doubtful debts s,
215 —& st Suspended
Specific General Total interest
FE T FE T FE T FET
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
458,927 123,361 582,288 94,957
29,335 92,530 121,865 -
(121,307) - (121,307) (19,405)
1,153 — 1,153 -
32,894 (1,944) 30,950 -
— — = 114,713
- - - (98,710)
401,002 213,947 614,949 91,555
- 604 604
399,195 213,343 612,538
1,807 - 1,807
401,002 213,947 614,949
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22 NON-TRADING SECURITIES

xE KR1T
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FHT FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
At fair value:
Debt securities
— Listed outside
Hong Kong 308,111 328,487 308,111 328,487
— Unlisted 1,208,163 187,306 1,207,663 186,806
1,516,274 215,793 1,315,774 919,293
Equity securities
— Llisted in Hong Kong 500,710 615,578 500,710 613,249
— Unlisted 6,656 6,654 6,650 6,648
507,366 622232 507,360 619,897
2,023,640 1,138,025 2,023,134 1,135,190
Market value of listed securities 808,821 944,065 808,821 941,736

The maturity profile of non-trading debt securities analysed by the remaining
period as at 31st December to the contractual maturity dates is as follows:

rE R IT
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
At fair value:
Three months or less 78,378 = 78,378 =
One year or less, but
over three months 680,695 = 680,695 =
Five years or less, but over
one year 522,081 207,453 522,081 207,453
Over five years 230,513 303,733 230,513 303,733
Undated 4,607 4,607 4,107 4,107
1,516,274 515,793 1,515,774 515,293
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22 NON-TRADING SECURITIES (Continued)

I EBEAR Y BEIRBTE Y SN Non-trading securities are analysed by issuer as follows:
T
TEE AT
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FHET FET FET TFET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
R B K Central governments and
R ERTT central banks 184,364 247,263 184,364 247,263
BITREM S Banks and other financial
s institutions 1,163,272 82,577 1,163,272 82,577
% Corporate entities 674,880 807,061 674,874 804,726
Hith Others 1,124 1,124 624 624
2,023,640 1,138,025 2,023,134 1,135,190
RBEQAFzRE 23 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
PN 4L
Group
2002 2001
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
DEEEFE Share of net assets 127,125 27,391
i i 7 O 8 Goodwill on acquisition less amortisation 66,181 =
193,306 27,391
KR AT
Bank
2002 2001
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE - BEAE Investments at cost
E il e) Unlisted shares 191,660 14,508
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23 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (Continued)

ARTEEFAZBELRRERDT Particulars of the associated companies which are directly held by the Bank are as
follows:
BHEERGTRSG
TEXBR ERTRBRREZHE
B4 =E 31 Particulars of
R 3T b B Principal activity issued shares held/ BFHEESR
NCIEE Place of and place of issued and fully Interest held
Name incorporation operation paid up capital 2002 2001
R R (B) EE RE R 200,000/ & B E & 25.0% 25.0%
BRAA —RRR 100/ 7T 2 & B8R
China Ping An Hong Kong General insurance 200,000 ordinary
Insurance (Hong Kong) in Hong Kong shares of
Company Limited HK$100 each
RERBRER DA REARLNE TR R B4R AR # 500,000,000 24.9% -
The Tai Ping Insurance ([HE) —RRE
Company, Limited People’s General insurance RMB500,000,000
Republic of in the PRC
China
(IIPRCII)
RHEAR 2 RE 24 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
FRIT
Bank
2002 2001
FET FHE T
HK$’000 HK$'000
RE  EAAKE Investments at cost
LMK, Unlisted shares 40,247 40,257
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31st December 2002, all of which are
directly held by the Bank. Except for UB China Business Management Co. Ltd.
which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and operating in Hong Kong,
all other subsidiaries are incorporated and operating in Hong Kong:
RECR
Rz FHE R ER
TEXER Particulars of Interest held
Principal activities issued shares held 2002 2001

IREMNABEERLDA
ICBC (Asia) Finance Limited

ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited

IRTIMNAERER DA
ICBC (Asia) Futures Limited

IRTMNEERRDA
ICBC (Asia) Property
Management Limited

TREMEXEFRAA
ICBC (Asia) Bullion
Company Limited

THRENREERER LA
ICBC (Asia) Investment
Management Limited

R EEBERFRAA
UB China Business
Management Co. Ltd.

BXGERARNR

RZEE-F
A=+ BHE

Deposit-taking company
licence revoked on
26th July 2002

REREARS
Provision of
nominee services

15 A<

HMERS
Futures index
dealing

RZZEZE-_F+-AA
BE T

Deregistered on 6th
December 2002

Bullion dealing

R-ZZEZE-_F+-AA
s A

Deregistered on 6th
December 2002

ERARRITZAM
TEHNEFHBE (K:F31)
Management of
the Bank’s PRC
NPL Portfolio
(Note 31)

25,000,0000% & i% ™ (&
1Bz LRk

25,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

100/ & R E &
1003 7T 2 % i R

100 ordinary shares
of HK$100 each

26,000,0000% & i% ™ (&
1Lz L@k
26,000,000 ordinary
shares of
HK$1 each

10,000 & & E &
1Bz LRk
10,000 ordinary
shares of
HK$1 each

6,000,000 = i &
BT LRk

6,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

2l BREEIE T
el

2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

1REEIZETZ
1 ordinary share

of US$1 each

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

- 100%

100% 100%

- 100%

100% 100%
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25

GOODWILL
REBRAREBIT
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Cost
At Tst January 709,957 —
Additons - 709,957
At 31st December 709,957 709,957
Accumulated amortisation
At Tst January 17,749 —
Amortisation charge 35,498 17,749
At 31st December 53,247 17,749
Net book value at 31st December 656,710 692,208

On 4th May 2001, the Bank entered into the Business Transfer Agreement with
The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, its ultimate holding company,
pursuant to which the Bank had conditionally agreed to acquire the commercial
banking business of the Hong Kong branch of the ultimate holding company (the
“Branch”) and its net assets of HK$2,300,000,000 (the “Acquisition”) for a
consideration of approximately HK$3,000,000,000 which was to be satisfied as
to approximately HK$2,120,000,000 by the issue and allotment of new ordinary
shares and convertible preference shares by the Bank to the ultimate holding
company, as to approximately HK$580,000,000 by the issuance of subordinated
debt due to the ultimate holding company, and as to approximately
HK$300,000,000 by cash. The acquisition was completed on 3rd July 2001.
Amortisation of goodwill from the acquisition of the Branch’s commercial banking
business amounting to approximately HK$35,498,000 (2001: HK$17,749,000)
is included in “Amortisation charge” above.

Amortisation of goodwill from acquisition of an associated company amounting to
approximately HK$838,000 (2001: HK$Nil) is included in “Investments in
associated companies”.



26 BEE&EE

AEH
A S fh

RZZTE_F
—H—H

R &

Group

Cost or valuation
At Tst January
2002
Additions
Disposals

At 31st December

2002

Accumulated depreciation

At Tst January
2002

26

Charge for the year

Disposals

At 31st December
2002

Net book value
At 31st December
2002

At 31st December
2001

FIXED ASSETS

iR B Pt & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

HE-FTT—4F+=H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31st December 2002

RITEE
JS& /S HE
Bank LESR BHURRE
premises and Leasehold Furniture and et
properties improvements equipment Total
FET TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
712,335 81,997 107,776 902,108
- 3,944 8,383 12,327
(5,580) (6,933) (3,178) (15,691)
706755 79,008 112,981 898,744
46,122 50,197 69,111 165,430
7,427 6,923 11,129 25,479
(851) (3,320) (2,474) (6,645)
52,698 53,800 77766 184,264
654,057 25,208 35,215 714,480
666,213 31,800 38,665 736,678
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26 EEEE (#) 26 FIXED ASSETS (Continued)
RITEE
P&/ HE
Bank MEEE BHURRE
premises and Leasehold Furniture and st
properties improvements equipment Total
THET FET TET FAET
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FR1T Bank
RAES A E Cost or valuation
R-ZBE_F
—RA—8 At 1st January 2002 712,335 81,997 107,750 902,082
NE Additions - 3,944 8,383 12,327
& Disposals (5,580) (6,933) (3,178) (15,691
R-ZBE_F At 31st December
fZA=+-8 2002 708755 79.008 112,955 898,718
Rt E Accumulated depreciation
R-ZTZ_F At 1st January
—HA—H 2002 46,122 50,197 69,095 165,414
FNEE Charge for the year 7,427 6,923 11,124 25,474
& Disposals (851) (3,320) (2,474) (6,645)
RZBE_F At 31st December
fZA=+-8 2002 52698 53800 77,745 184,243
REFEE Net book value
R-ZTBT_F At 31st December
+-A=+—H 2002 654,057 25,208 35,210 714,475
RZTBE—F At 31st December
+=A=+-8 2001 666,213 31,800 38,655 736,668
RIOTFERDEZRRESR L ED T The analysis of cost or valuation of bank premises and properties is as follows:
T
FEEREARST
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FE T
HK$’000 HK$°000
N | At cost 44,277 44,277
BR—hANENFEEEEE At professional valuation in 1994 662,478 668,058
706,755 712,335
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ROFERMEZERDFEINMAT :

REE  UTIHTARE :
— REBEY (BB50F)
— FHBELH (M FI10250%F)

AEBXEEFEUNE 7R EORESH
% BAEHEGMBROTFERYEZE
B-BER-NNEOFEREBZRITEE
k¥ BERG62,478,0008 T @ REE
BH2EBUNERBRE-ATHREHR
—“NAME+ A=+ —HRAFETER
REREAAHcRTFERNEZEE
732,700,000 T {E L -

BREE-—ATBHTZAFAMERRER
REEETZHE ABTEAZEER
MER—_TZ_F+-_A=+—HB2Z2H
MEAF#5411,300,0008 7T ° &
FERWARTAKREE - BEFATH I
B —BZERTREE -

WAEBERARTZRITEERDEAK
AREBBFTEAR  MERTFERER
232,894,560 T (Z 2 T — & :
236,465,000%7T) °
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FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

The net book value of bank premises and properties is analysed as follows:

FEBRFRAT
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FH# T
HK$’000 HK$°000
In Hong Kong, held on:
— Llong-term leases (over 50 years) 515,664 519,719
— Medium-term leases

(between 10 to 50 years) 138,393 146,494
654,057 666,213

The Group places reliance on paragraph 80 of SSAP 17 which provides exemption
from the need to make regular revaluations of bank premises and properties. The
Bank's premises and properties were revalued in 1994 by the Directors at
HK$662,478,000 with reference to a valuation made on an open market, existing
use basis by FPDSavills, independent property consultants, which valued the Bank's
premises and properties at HK$732,700,000 at 31st December 1994.

Based on a valuation made on an open market, existing use basis by FPDSavills,
the aggregate open market value of the Bank's premises and properties located in
Hong Kong was approximately HK$411,300,000 at 31st December 2002. The
effect of such revaluation has not been incorporated in the accounts, but has been
incorporated in the computation of capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the
section headed Supplementary Financial Information.

The carrying amount of the bank premises and properties of the Group and Bank

would have been HK$232,894,560 (2001: HK$236,465,000) had they been

stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited ® 2002 Annual Report  QQ
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RITAENEMEBEE 2 FRRERR
TZA=+t—REANIHA LHHZH

27

DEPOSITS AND BALANCES OF BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS

The maturity profile of deposits and balances of banks and other financial
institutions analysed by the remaining period as at 31st December to the contractual

RAMMT : maturity dates is as follows:
rEH BT
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ERERKKHKEE  Repayable on demand 951,417 754,519 951,417 755,615
—@AHZIUAT Three months or less 11,291,703 6,010,550 11,291,703 6,057,550
—FX A TEER One year or less, but over
=f@A three months 91,000 288,928 91,000 288,928
12,334,120 7,053,997 12,334,120 7,102,093
28 EFEX 28 DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
r&EH BT
Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FET FET FET
HKS’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
EBRERK Demand deposits and
FRFEO current accounts 689,385 504,839 689,481 505,088
BEER Savings deposits 2,150,712 1,586,969 2,309,642 1,728,355
TEHNBANER Time, call and notice deposits 35,910,933 27,613,499 35,980,223 27,657,134
38,751,030 29,705,307 38,979,346 29,890,577

EPERE+T-_A=1t—REEKIHE
EHEAZBRIFMT

The maturity profile of deposits from customers analysed by the remaining period
as at 31st December to the contractual maturity dates is as follows:

AR EREFEIREER  Repayable on demand

“@ALUT Three months or less

—FEHUT One year or less, but over
BRA=1A three months

HEHUAT Five years or less, but over
BHEBH—F one year

100 +EIBERT(EM BRAF « —TT_FFH

rE BT

Group Bank
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FHE T FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2,850,587 2,113,465 3,034,659 2,254,903
33,020,686 26,294,791 33,064,930 26,338,623
2,788,262 1,290,240 2,788,262 1,290,240
91,495 6,811 91,495 6,811
38,751,030 29,705,307 38,979,346 29,890,577




29 ERTEXRRE
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29 CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED

FEERART
Group and Bank

2002 2001
FET FHE T
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEITERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,441,952 175,019
BOEBETERE Repurchase of certificates of deposit issued (12,950) (175,019)
1,429,002 —
BEETERBRT_A=1T—REEHE The maturity profile of certificates of deposit issued analysed by the remaining

MALHECHROTMT

period as at 31st December to the contractual maturity dates is as follows:

FEBRFRAT
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FHE T
HK$’000 HK$'000
—FFUTEBEB=A One year or less, but over three months 700,000 -
AFEHEUTEBE—F Five years or less, but over one year 729,002 =
1,429,002 —
i B IR 30 DEFERRED TAXATION
FEBRFRAT
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FHE T
HK$’000 HK$'000
R—A—BER+ZA=+—8H At 1st January and 31st December 6,289 6,289
BERBEBECENBEEELEHEARE - There is no significant potential liability for deferred taxation not provided for.
HRERRRERTSELBIEREGE & The revaluation of bank premises and properties does not constitute a timing
WRELEHREME - ROTFERYEZE difference for deferred taxation purposes as realisation of the revaluation surplus

Y B E

would not result in a taxation liability.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited ® 2002 Annual Report 101



iR B Pt & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

#

31

£

HitfRERERE

AEBz [BMEBEREES | BREARE
FREKEERTIRERORE U
EEMBHEMT

REBNZERE

BN TENESRAS
e 2 B 2 3

REPREBERERFARTIN_FTTEF
RIz2EMBAR - AR HIRL
ZEEEHRNR  EERFHAREENR
ABRTAWTIBOETES (AL TEL
BESAR]) - REFEXBEREBRE
ERTMAROEBRRREBEANMLTE
WEFHEAMBCZER - BEROERMA
RETEHRE  FRERNLTENE
FHEEZHORE  YEFRTZEER
BERANBIBEIHNZES]  R-FTFT
TEFT A=+t -BRZEER
406,583,0008 T - BEBNRBEMEL
UM BRECRAERE KRBT Y
i e

ABRTAEERRBKABREENR
B YREBREE (FE)ARAAE
HWoRBEAR  ARTUBSR=R
600,952,000% 7T - MR REBHRER
BEAEARIBNERASBRZA
B MEERARBEHREWAEER
EROZBEFAZIEEIK  HRERN
EREOSEEFEZEMOR -

102 SEISRT(EMNERAT « —SB-FFH

ZTF=F+=A=+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December 2002

OTHER ACCOUNTS AND PROVISIONS

Included in “Other accounts and provisions” of the Group are Junior performance
linked notes (PLNs) issued by UB China Business Management Co. Ltd. (“UBCBM”)
which have been fully written down as follows:

r5HE
Group
2002 2001
FET FHE T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Junior PLNs 600,952 600,952
Less: Write-down in the light of the
provisions required on the PRC
NPL Portfolio (600,952) (600,952)

UBCBM is a wholly-owned subsidiary established by the Bank in 2000 as a
special purpose asset management company for the purpose of maximising the
level of recovery of certain classified loans of the Bank which were extended
towards Mainland China related business (the “PRC NPL Portfolio”) over a five-
year term. UBCBM funded the purchase of the PRC NPL Portfolio by issuing two
tranches of PLNs at par value. The Senior PLNs were subscribed for in full by the
Bank as partial consideration for the transfer of the PRC NPL Portfolio and are
included in the Bank’s balance sheet as held-to-maturity securities amounting
HK$406,583,000 as at 31st December 2002. All financial effects associated
with the Senior PLNs were eliminated in the Group accounts.

The Junior PLNs were offered for subscription to all shareholders and underwritten
by China Merchants Holdings (Hong Kong) Company Limited. The Bank received
cash funds of HK$600,952,000 immediately upon completion. Since the Junior
PLNs were to bear the first risk of loss against the PRC NPL Portfolio, the redemption
amount of the Junior PLNs was fully written down as the Directors are of the
opinion that the possibility of any repayment of the Junior PLNs at the end of the
five-year term is remote.
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LOAN CAPITAL

Subordinated floating rate notes
— with a final maturity on
2nd July 2011

with a final maturity on
12th December 2011

with a final maturity on
26th March 2012

with a final maturity on
8th December 2012
perpetual

Exchange adjustment

FEERART
Group and Bank

2002 2001
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$°000
584,820 584,820
623,808 623,808
545,916 -
500,000 -
1,000,000 -
186 -
3,254,730 1,208,628

Loan capital were raised by the Bank for the development and expansion of
business and have been fully subscribed by the ultimate holding company. These
notes qualify for and have been included as the Bank’s supplementary capital in
accordance with the Third Schedule to the Banking Ordinance.

The notes which have a final maturity on 2nd July 2011 are raised to finance the

Acquisition.
SHARE CAPITAL
(a) Ordinary shares

Authorised:

At Tst January and 31st December
2001, and 31st December 2002

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited ® 2002 Annual Report

SREE2ETZLER
Ordinary shares

of HK$2 each
R #EE

Number of shares

1,000,000,000

FET
HK$°000

2,000,000
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33 SHARE CAPITAL (Continved)
(a) Ordinary shares (Continved)
Issued and fully paid:
SREE2ETZEER

Ordinary shares
of HK$2 each

R7EH FET

Number of shares HK$'000

At Tst January 2001 450,871,855 901,744
Increase during the year ended

31st December 2001 80,447,449 160,895

At 31st December 2001 and

Tst January 2002 531,319,304 1,062,639
Increase during the year ended

31st December 2002 93,055,000 186,110

At 31st December 2002 624,374,304 1,248,749

Details relating to the issue of ordinary shares in the year are set out in
Note (c) below.

(b) Convertible non-cumulative preference shares
Authorised:

BREBESETZ
TEAERGFELR
Convertible
non-cumulative
preference shares of

HK$5 each

R 8 FET

Number of shares HK$'000

At st January 2001 — —

Increase during the year ended

31st December 2001 232,000,000 1,160,000
At 31st December 2001,
1st January 2002 and

31st December 2002 232,000,000 1,160,000
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33 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Convertible non-cumulative preference shares (Continved)

Issued and fully paid:

BREESERTZ
TERAERGFELR
Convertible
non-cumulative
preference shares of

HK$5 each

B 8B THET

Number of shares HK$'000

At 1st January 2001 — —

Increase during the year ended

31st December 2001 202,219,218 1,011,096
At 31st December 2001,
1st January 2002 and

31st December 2002 202,219,218 1,011,096

Details relating to the terms of these convertible non-cumulative preference
shares are set out in Note (d) below.

Issue of shares in the year

On 21st May 2002, 93,055,000 existing ordinary shares held by the
ultimate holding company were placed to independent investors pursuant to
the Placing Agreement dated 7th May 2002 and 93,055,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$2.00 each were subscribed by the ultimate holding company
pursuant to the Subscription Agreement dated 7th May 2002 at a placing
price of HK$8.16 each which represented a premium of HK$6.16 each
(the “Subscription”). The proceeds from the Subscription were used by the
Bank as general working capital. The issued share capital of the Bank was
increased to HK$1,248,749,000 after completion of the Subscription. These
shares rank pari passu with the existing shares.

Terms of the convertible preference shares

The holders of the convertible preference shares are entitled to receive,
pari passu, any dividend or distribution payable to the ordinary shareholders
on the basis that each convertible preference share is equivalent to one
ordinary share. The right to such dividend is non-cumulative. On a return of
capital on liquidation or otherwise, the assets of the Bank available for
distribution among its shareholders shall be applied in paying up to a
maximum of HK$2.00 paid or deemed paid on each convertible preference
share in priority to any payment to the holders of the ordinary share and
thereafter the holders of the convertible preference shares and the ordinary
shares shall participate in the assets of the Bank on a pari passu basis.
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited ® 2002 Annual Report



iR B Pt & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

HE-TT—4F+f=H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 3 1st December 2002

33 K& #) 33 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(d) TERELBRHER (&) (d) Terms of the convertible preference shares (Continued)
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The convertible preference shares confer no voting rights to their holders in
any general meeting of the Bank, except in a class meeting of holders of
convertible preference shares, in which case each convertible preference
share will entitle the holder to one vote in such class meeting.

The convertible preference shares are convertible to ordinary shares of the
Bank at any time following their issue. The number of ordinary shares to be
allotted upon conversion is determined by a conversion factor which takes
into account any distribution or changes in the capital structure of the Bank
subsequent to the issue of the convertible preference shares. The shortfall of
the nominal value of any ordinary shares required to be allotted upon
conversion of the preference shares shall be dealt with in the convertible
preference share premium.

The convertible preference shares have been fully subscribed by the ultimate
holding company.

Share options
(i)  Employee share option scheme

During the year, no option has been granted and at 31st December
2002, there were no options outstanding.

(i) Issue of options in connection with the issue of Junior PLNs

In connection with the issue of Junior PLNs by UBCBM, the shareholders
of the Bank had by a resolution passed at the Extraordinary General
Meeting held on 28th March 2000 approved the issue of options to
subscribe for shares of the Bank at the end of the five-year term of
the Junior PLNs subject to the fulfillment of certain conditions. These
options, if issued, would allow the holders of the Junior PLNs to
subscribe for shares in the Bank at an exercise price of HK$7.78.
However, no options will be issued if total recoveries of the PRC NPL
Portfolio at the end of the five-year term of the Junior PLNs are below
HK$1,211,063,000.
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Group

At Tst January 2002

Issue of shares

Share issue expense

Change in fair value
of nonrading
securities

Disposal of non-rading
securities

Disposal of a bank
property

Release of revaluation
deficit of an
associated company

Exchange differences

Profit for the year

2001 final and special
dividends paid
[Note 11)

2002 interim dividends
paid (Note 11)

At 315t December 2002

Representing:
Bank and subsidiaries
Associated companies

At 315t December 2002

iR B Pt & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

HE-FTT—4F+=H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31st December 2002
34 RESERVES
2002
TERERH
BAREE
Convertible  #TEE
non-  EfififE RE
LZEREE cumulative Bank  Efififs
Ordinary preference premises Investment  SEfE —-R#HE  REEH
share share revaluation revaluation Exchange  General  Retained EH)
premium  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings Total
Thx ThErn ThErn TER TER TER ThErn Thrn
HK$’000 HKS’000 HKS$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS’000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
1,224,894 505,496 412,631 138,766 - 219,200 495,969 2,996,956
573,219 - - - - - - 573,219
(11,427 - - - - - - (1,427)
- - - (108,388 - - - (108,388)
- - - 781 - - - 781
- - (4120) - - - 4120 -
- - - 1,990 - - - 1,990
- - - - (21) - - (21)
- - - - - - 482,429 482,429
- - - - - - (161,378) (161,378)
- - - - - - (82,659) (82,659)
1,786,686 505,496 408,511 33,149 (21) 219,200 738,481 3,691,502
1,786,686 505,496 408,511 33,957 - 219,200 724,420 3,678,270
- - - (808) (21) - 14,061 13,232
1,786,686 505,496 408,511 33,149 (21) 219,200 738,481 3,691,502

The general reserve comprised previous years’ transfers from retained earnings
and is distributable.
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Bank

At Tst January 2002

Issve of shares

Share issue expenses

Change in fair value of
non-rading securities

Disposal of non-rading
securities

Disposal of a bank
property

Profit for the year
[Note 10)

2001 final and special
dividends paid
[Note 11)

2002 interim dividends
paid (Note 11)

At 315t December 2002
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Pt & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

—FZ

34 RESERVES (Continued)

—4#+=H=+—HI-%/Z For the year ended 31st December 2002

2002
mERE RS
BEAREE
Convertible BROEE
non- EfifE R&
EEREE cumulative Bank EfifE
Ordinary preference  premises Investment Rkt REEH
share share revaluation revaluation General  Retained Ehy
premium  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
FEx FEx FEx FAx FAEx FAT FAT
HKS$’000  HK$’000  HK$’000  HKS’'000  HKS$’000  HK$'000  HK$’000
1,224,894 505,496 412,631 141,076 219,200 422,774 2,926,071
573,219 - - - - - 573,219
(11,427) - - - - - (427
- - - (108,388) - - (108,388)
- - - 781 - - 781
- - (8120) - - 412 -
- - - - - 522,235 522,235
- - - - - (161,378) (161,378)
- - - - - (82,659)  (82.659)
1,786,686 505,496 408,511 33,469 219,200 705,092 3,658,454




iR B Pt & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

HE-FTT—4F+=H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31st December 2002

34 @RE® 34 RESERVES (Confinved)
& Group
2001
DEEE3-4)
BEREE
Convertible RIEE
non- EfhEE g
EEREE  cumulative Bank EfhEE
Ordinary ~ preference premises  Investment — Rk REEM
share share  revaluation  revaluation General Retained )
premium premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total

TEL TET TET TET TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZZZ-E—-F—H At st Janvary 2001

ZEAE S as previously reported 782,447 - 412,631 6,444 219,200 202,234 1,622,956
RMEHEBREREIN Effect of adopting SSAPY

(i) 2 %2 (revised) = = = = = 58,613 58,613
RZZ2T-F—-F—H At lst Janvary 2001

B as restated 782,447 - 412,631 6,444 219,200 260,847 1,681,569
Bk MR Issue of shares 442,461 505,548 = = = = 948,009
BORH A% Share issue expenses (14) (52) - - - - (66)
FEEEERRL Change in fair value of

EHNTEED nonrading securities = = = 141,076 = = 141,076
NEBERA L Share of revaluation deficit

BftER of an associated company - - - (122) - - (122)
HEFFEEE Disposal of non-trading

A& 5 securities - - - (8,632) - - (8,632)
KEEEF Profit for the year = = = = = 330,412 330,412
BN-22%F 2000 final dividends paid

*HRE - - - - S 58613 (58613
BENZZZ-4%FH 2001 interim dividends

BE (HE11) ocid (Noe 11) - - - - — 36877 (36,677)
RZZRZ-F At 31st December 2001

+ZA=1+-H 1,224,894 505,496 412,631 138,766 219,200 495,969 2,996,956
R& Representing:
ARORNBAR Bank and subsidiaries 1,224,894 505,496 412,631 141,565 219,200 480,714 2,984,500
YN Associated company - - - (2,799 = 15,255 12,456
R-ZT-F At 315t December 2001

+ZA=1+-H 1,224,894 505,496 412,631 138,766 219,200 495,969 2,996,956
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Bank

At Tst Janvary 2001 as
previously reported
Effect of adopting SSAP9

(revised)

At Tst January 2001 as
restated

Issue of shares

Share issue expenses

Change in fair value of
non-trading securities

Profit for the year
[Note 10)

2000 final dividends paid

2001 interim dividends
paid (Note 11)

At 315t December 2001
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
—4#+=H=+—HI-%/Z For the year ended 31st December 2002

34 RESERVES (Continued)

2001
MERFEZF
BEREE
Convertible RORE
non- EfhkiE K&
EEREE  cumulative Bank EftME

Ordinary  preference premises  Investment —REE R A
share share  revaluation  revaluation General Retained @i
premium premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
FEr FEr FE FEL FEL FEL FEL
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
782,447 - 412,631 - 219,200 141,428 1,555,706
- - - - - 58,613 58,613
782,447 - 412,631 - 219,200 200,041 1,614,319
442,461 505,548 - - - - 948,009
(14) (52) - - - - (66)
- - - 141,076 - - 141,076
_ _ - = = 318,023 318,023
= = = = = (58,613) (58,613)
_ _ _ _ - BT (36,677)
1,224,894 505,496 412,631 141,076 219,200 422,774 2,926,071
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35 BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES

(a)

iR B Pt & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

HE-FTT—4F+=H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31st December 2002

Included in the following balance sheet captions are balances
with the ultimate holding company:

On-balance sheet

Cash and short-term funds

Cash and balances with banks and

other financial institutions

Money at call and short notice

Placements with banks and other
financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months

Advances and other accounts

Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions

Certificates of deposit issued

Other accounts and provisions

Loan capital

FEERFRST

Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FE T
HK$’000 HK$'000
52,135 54,857
7,814,649 1,528,208
7,866,784 1,583,065
1,033,844 83,938
85,049 80,324
8,985,677 1,747,327
11,447,647 6,293,676
700,000 -
120,764 96,281
12,268,411 6,389,957
3,254,730 1,208,628

Note: Included in deposits and balances of banks and other financial institutions is
an amount of HK$2,105,676,000 (2001: 233,928,000) representing
utilisation of a standby credit facility of HK$6,000,000,000 (2001:
HK$6,000,000,000) granted by the ultimate holding company to the Bank in
July 2000 for working capital purposes.
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HE-TT—4F+f=H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 3 1st December 2002

35 HEEERELRZESR (®) 35 BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES (Continued)
(a) UTHAEEREBEREAPHEHERE (a) Included in the following balance sheet captions are balances

RAR &R (4)

EESERINER

HNE B #)
—RAER

M & 35 1
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NEE 4
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—E A
—HhE Bz

B
—BHNEE
—BE A
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M & B 1
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— &

—FREH
Z B Al
—EXEE
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with the ultimate holding company: (Continved)

Off-balance sheet

Foreign exchange contracts
— contractual amount

Interest rate swaps
— notional principal

Currency options
— contractual amount
— options purchased
— options written

Bond options
— contractual amount
— options purchased
— options written

Interest rate options
— contractual amount
— options written

Other commitments with maturity

within 1 year
— overdraft facility

FEEREARST
Group and Bank

2002 2001
FERT TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
8,046,200 6,514,671
7,366,960 6,346,147
390,100 236,107
- 80,315
390,100 316,422
- 233,928
- 155,952
- 389,880
404,940 —
1,013,844 549,880
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iR B Pt & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

HE-FTT—4F+=H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31st December 2002

35 BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES (Continued)

(b) Included in the following balance sheet captions are balances

with fellow subsidiaries:

On-balance sheet

Advances and other accounts

Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Other accounts and provisions

Off-balance sheet

Foreign exchange contracts
— contractual amount

Interest rate swaps
— notional principal

FREERART
Group and Bank

2002
FET
HK$’000

3,020

2001
FET
HK$°000

14,111

60,000
639,791
1,308

563,313

701,099

563,313

107,800

265,159
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HE-TT—4F+f=H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 3 1st December 2002
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35 BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Included in the following balance sheet captions are balances
with subsidiaries of the Bank:

RRIT
Bank
2002 2001
FET FHE T
HK$’000 HK$'000
On-balance sheet
Senior PLNs issued by UBCBM
included in the balance sheet
under “Held-to-maturity securities” 406,583 699,297
Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions - 48,096
Deposits from customers 228,316 185,467
Other accounts and provisions 39,733 42,988
268,049 276,551
Off-balance sheet
Forward exchange contracts
— notional principal 242,095 1,045,111

Included in the following balance sheet captions are balances
with an associated company:

AEBRAKNEBIT
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
On-balance sheet
Deposits from customers 15,884 =
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36

iR B Pt & « NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

HE-FTT—4F+=H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31st December 2002

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into various transactions in the normal course
of business with related parties, including the ultimate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries and associated companies.

(a) Summary of transactions entered into during the ordinary course
of business with related parties

The aggregated income and expense arising from the related party
transactions with the ultimate holding company, fellow subsidiaries and
associated companies are summarised as follows:

2002 2001
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$°000
Interest income
— Placement (Note {i]) 38,298 19,782
— Interest rate swaps (Nofe (ii)) 307,313 175,749
Interest expense
— Deposits (Note (iii)) (153,044) (200,733)
— Interest rate swaps (Note (ii)) (345,375) (193,353)
— Certificates of deposit issued
(Note (iv)) (13,304) —
— Loan capital (Note (v)) (38,263) (10,496)
Net option premium expense
(Note (vi)) (782) -
Management fee income (Note (vii)) 4,500 2,250
Service fee income (Note (x)) 45 —
Service fee expense (Note (ix]) (3,502) —
Premises expense (Note (viii)) 5,926 (3,095)
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

Summary of transactions entered into during the ordinary course
of business with related parties (Continved)

Notes:

(i) Interest income was received on inter-bank deposits placed with the ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries at prevailing market rates.

(i) Interest income and expense was received from and paid to the ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries on the interest rate swaps at prevailing
market rates. These transactions included interest rate swaps entered on a
back-to-back basis with the ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries.

(i) Interest expense was paid on the deposits taken from the ultimate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries.

(iv)  Interest expense was paid to the ultimate holding company for fixed rate
certificates of deposit issued by the Bank and subscribed by the ultimate
holding company with nominal value of HK$700,000,000.

(v} Interest expense was paid to the ultimate holding company for subordinated
floating rate notes issued by the Bank and fully subscribed by the ultimate
holding company (Note 32).

(vi)  Net option premium expense was paid to the ultimate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries on the various option contracts at prevailing market rates.

(vii)  In accordance with the Collaboration Agreement dated 3rd July 2001,
management fee income was received from the Branch for the provision of
services such as accounting and budgeting, internal audit, marketing and
back office settlement and clearing.

(viii)  In accordance with the Collaboration Agreement dated 3rd July 2001 and the
Licence Agreement dated 27th December 2001, premises expense was paid
to the Branch for using a portion of floor area rented by the Branch.

(ix)  In accordance with the Service Levels Agreement dated 21st February 2002,
service fee expense was paid to the ultimate holding company for the provision
of data processing services to the Bank.

(x)  In accordance with the Outsourcing Agreement dated 18th December 2002,
service fee income was received from the Branch for the provision of
management, administrative and marketing services in respect of credit card
business of the Branch launched in Hong Kong commencing from 18th December
2002.
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HE-FTT—4F+=H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31st December 2002

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Buy and sale of certain assets from/to related parties
Sub-participation of syndicated loans

During the year, the Bank entered into various capital market transactions
with the Branch, the ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries.
These transactions included sub-participation in syndicated loans of the
Bank by the Branch, the ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries
for a total of HK$7,940,249,000 (2001: HK$Nil) and similar sub-
participation in syndicated loans of the Branch, the ultimate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries by the Bank for a total of HK$1,451,000,000
(2001: 1,697,000,000). Immaterial fee charge was paid on loan transfers
in 2002 (2001: HK$Nil). These transactions were priced based on either
on the terms of the underlying loan agreement, if applicable, or prevailing
market rates if such comparable rates are available, or on terms that are no
less favourable than those available to other independent sydicate members.

Buy and sale of debt securities

During the year, the Bank bought and sold debt securities with a carrying
value of HK$749,529,000 (2001: HK$Nil) and HK$2,548,323,000 (2001:
HK$Nil) respectively from and to the ultimate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries. These transactions were entered into on normal commercial
terms with reference to prevailing market rates.

Undertaking from the ultimate holding company

To demonstrate its support to the Bank, a Letter of Comfort dated 3rd July
2001 was executed by the ultimate holding company, pursuant to which it
will provide the Bank with such funding as may be required by the Bank to
ensure that it will maintain sufficient capital and liquidity levels.

Simultaneously on 3rd July 2001, the ultimate holding company and the
Bank entered into a guarantee agreement whereby the ultimate holding
company agreed to guarantee to the extent of HK$9,000,000,000 the
payment obligations of certain customers whose “large exposures” were
transferred to the Bank pursuant to the Business Transfer Agreement and to
indemnify the Bank in respect of any losses incurred if any obligation of
such customers become unenforceable. The amount of such on-balance sheet
and off-balance sheet large exposures of the Bank covered by this guarantee
as at 31st December 2002 was HK$3,970,478,000 and
HK$1,705,566,000 respectively (2001: HK$5,697,000,000 and
HK$1,781,000,000 respectively).
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HE-TT—4F+f=H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 3 1st December 2002
37 ABHE 37 SEGMENT REPORTING
(a) XBESE (a) Class of business
AEETEREHERTEE B The Group operates predominantly in commercial banking which comprises
REHEETERT MERG XS commercial and retail banking, treasury and markets, and corporate and
RERT  BERTERTEBER investment banking activities. Commercial and retail banking includes retail
EZERT BERERESR banking, commercial lending and trade finance. Treasury and markets
B MEEBBEBIE FEMS activities include foreign exchange, money market and capital market
REATGER - CEERERT activities. Corporate and investment banking activities mainly comprise
FTEARGERT  REBHKER corporate banking, the provision of debt capital market and corporate
miskEX/EMBRERS - finance and advisory services.
r5H Group
2002
¥
[GES RERT
HEERT BfE  Corporate
Commercial Treasury and
and retail and investment EiE ] #at
banking markets banking Unallocated Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FR B A Net interest income 257,108 219,945 147,951 64,185 689,189
Hp 2@l A Other operating income 48,642 39,832 266,476 35,782 390,732
2EWA Operating income 305,750 259,777 414,427 99,967 1,079,921
EEXH Operating expenses (128,037) (36,913) (42,343) (99,967) (307,260)
e Amortisation of goodwill - - - (36,336) (36,336)
Mk%E#HEF 2% Operating profit/(loss)
ERF,/ (B1E)  before provisions 177,713 222,864 372,084 (36,336) 736,325
(%) /B (Charge for)/write-back
REIR of bad and doubtful debts (91,581) 129 (46,242) (43,818) (181,512)
#85%F,/ (BB) Operating profit/(loss) 86,132 222,993 325,842  (80,154) 554,813
HEETFEERE Netloss from disposal
F of fixed assets (3,208) - (5) (1,672) (4,885)
HERBOEZE Net gain on disposal and
AP EAFR redemption of held-to-
ERFEEERR  maturity securities and
BHE RN FE non-trading securities - 26,390 130 1,749 28,269
BEE#2ESHZ  Writeback of provision on
BERIERE held-to-maturity securities
BEERARES and impairment loss on
ZREEE non-rading securities - - - 1,252 1,252
82,924 249,383 325,967 (78,825) 579,449
JE 1R B & 1 A) Share of net losses of
BEFHE associated companies - - - (8,620) (8,620)
BRBLAT R R/ Profit/(loss) before
(B#8) taxation 82,924 249,383 325,967 (87,445) 570,829
NBEE/AfE Segment assets/liabilities 13,419,431 27,032,391 19,105,737 2,704,430 62,261,989
BEAZH Capital expenditure 4,339 108 58 7,822 12,327
NEEH Depreciation charge 11,577 317 74 13,511 25,479
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37 SHB/E (B 37 SEGMENT REPORTING (Confinued)
(a) ¥¥BEE #H) (a) Class of business (Continued)
XEE Group
2001
i 3T
GRS RERT
BTERT HE Corporate
Commercial Treasury and
and retail and investment AOE @t
banking markets banking  Unallocated Total
FHET FHET FET FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FMEWA Net interest income 246,153 68,933 82,676 90,309 488,071
Hih & B A Other operating income 47,158 28,435 116,472 10,854 202,919
HEWA Operating income 293,311 97,368 199,148 101,163 690,990
BEXH Operating expenses (137,037) (22,954) (28,392)  (101,114)  (289,497)
B33 Amortisation of goodwill - - - (17,749) (17,749)
MKkE#HESF 2%  Operating profit/(loss)
Ewfl/ (BE) before provisions 156,274 74,414 170,756 (17,700) 383,744
(k) /B (Charge for)/write-back
SHE of bad and doubtful debs (36,038) - 103 (30,075 (66,010)
“Em A,/ (FB8) Operating profit/(loss) 120,236 74,414 170,859 (47,775) 317,734
HEEFEEEZE Net gain/(loss) from disposal
Fl/(B18)F8  of fixed assets 1,399 = = (49) 1,350
PEREERZE  Net gain on disposal and
FHMzESRR redemption of held-to-maturity
EHEEZERE  securities and nonrading
BHZBMFE securities - 20,694 - = 20,694

FEEH 2 & % % & Provision on held-to-maturity
RIEFHEEERE  securities and impairment

EHZMEEE  losses on nontrading securities - - - (1,677) (1,677)
FETHE Provision on property

MERE available for sale - - - (10,000) (10,000)

121,635 95,108 170,859 (59,501) 328,101

i N Share of net profits of an

i A% R associated company - - - 3,480 3,480
BRERTET Profit/(loss) before

(B#8) taxation 121,635 95,108 170,859 (56,021) 331,581
PBEE/BE Segment assets/liabilities 11,573,238 13,497,046 15,192,536 3,234,409 43,497,229
EASH Capital expenditure 16,005 1,790 738 10,132 28,665
nEER Depreciation charge 11,979 389 87 12,429 24,884
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37 SHB/EB) 37 SEGMENT REPORTING (Confinued)
(b) #®i#EHES (b) Geographical area
AEBETEERELLEEE K& The Group operates predominantly in Hong Kong. Less than 10% of the
ZHEMNEBEREBKRA - & Group's income, profit, assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities or commitments
Fl-EE - BFE IREHIRE is attributable to the Group’s overseas operations.
PREDZT
38 HEABRRNER 38 OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES
(a) HAEEBEREE (a) Contingent liabilities and commitments
UNTHERBEIZRNZHAR The following is @ summary of the contractual amounts of each significant
BEREEZENEE: class of contingent liability and commitment:
FEERERST
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FHE T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEEGERE® Direct credit substitutes 2,491,814 2,265,182
BT SGFER AREE Transaction-related contingencies 126,649 =
RESGFEH L AREE Trade-related contingencies 627,797 508,438
HAh A Other commitments with an
original maturity of:
— RIBAIR—FH — under 1 year or which are
AT R 1 B8R unconditionally cancellable 4,161,036 1,977,302
— REBBE—FHUEL — 1 year and over 9,261,792 6,272,577
BEEHER Forward deposits placed 49,438 -
16,718,526 11,023,499
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BAREHE
ELRESE
BAEZHE
EHERE

Group

Exchange rate contracts
Forwards
Swaps
Options purchased
Options written

Inferest rate contracts
Inferest rate swaps
Options purchased
Options written

Other contracts
Equity options purchased
Equity options written
Bond options purchased
Bond options written
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (Continued)

(b) Derivatives

The following is an analysis of the aggregate notional amounts of each
significant type of derivatives:

EE i st

Trading Hedging Total
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
FEn TE TiEx TE TiEx TET
HK$000 HK$000  HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
6,500,181 13,152 73,852 386,344 6,574,033 399,496
1,779,682 - 11,958,359 13,877,839 13,738,041 13,877,839
5,690,033 236,107 - - 5,690,033 236,107
5,690,038 236,107 - - 5,690,038 236,107
19,659,934 485366 12,032,211 14,264,183 31,692,145 14,749,549
7,799 - 10,574,251 7,813,078 10,582,050 7,813,078
203,994 - 1,265,856 - 1,469,850 -
53,994 - 1,031,892 - 1,085,886 -
265,787 - 12,871,999 7813078 13,137,786 7,813,078
44,914 - - - 44,914 -
44,914 - - - 44,914 -
- 233,928 - - - 233,928
- 233,928 - - - 233,928
______ 89,828 46785 - - 89828 467856
20,015,549 953,222 24,904,210 22,077,261 44,919,759 23,030,483
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38 BEERGRNMER @)
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Bank

Exchange rate contracts

Forwards

Swaps

Options purchased
Options written

Interest rate contracts

Inferest rate swaps
Options purchased
Options written

Other contracts

Equity options purchased
Equity options written
Bond options purchased
Bond options written

AEERERNLBETEMESF
BEERH R TISBED AR

BET -
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (Continued)

(b) Derivatives (Continued)

EE bl #st

Trading Hedging Total
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
FEn T FEn TE TiEx TE
HK$000 HK$000  HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
6,500,181 13,152 315,947 1,432,055 6,816,128 1,445,207
1,779,682 - 11,958,359 13,877,839 13,738,041 13,877,839
5,690,033 236,107 - - 5,690,033 236,107
5,690,038 236,107 - - 5,690,038 236,107
19,659,934 485,366 12,274,306 15,309,894 31,934,240 15,795,260
7,799 - 10,574,251 7,813,078 10,582,050 7,813,078
203,994 - 1,265,856 - 1,469,850 -
______ 53994 - 1031892 - 1085886 -
265,787 - 12,871,999 7813078 13,137,786 7,813,078
44,914 - - - 44,914 -
44,914 - - - 44,914 -
- 233,928 - - - 233,928
- 233,928 - - - 233,928
______ 89,828 467856 - - 89828 46785
20,015,549 953,222 25,146,305 23,122,972 45,161,854 24,076,194

The Group did not enter into any bilateral netting arrangements during the
year and accordingly the following amounts are shown on a gross basis.
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38 OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Group

Contingent liabilities and
commitments

Derivatives:
— Exchange rate contracts
— Interest rate contracts
— Other contracts

Bank

Contingent liabilities and
commitments

Derivatives:
— Exchange rate contracts
— Interest rate contracts
— Other contracts

Derivatives (Continued)

mEEEREEE
Credit risk BEEME

weighted amount Replacement cost
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FHE T FET FHET
HKS$’000 HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000

5,049,274 3,373,838
46,153 35,642 48,251 32,066
98,022 41,746 405,508 134,990
- 570 238 2,852
144,175 77,958 453,997 169,908
MEFERBEE
Credit risk %N

weighted amount Replacement cost
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET FHE T FET FHET
HKS$’000 HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000

5,049,274 3,373,838

47,557 41,456 48,637 33,237
98,022 41,746 405,508 134,990
- 570 - 2,852
145,579 83,772 454,145 171,079
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38 OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Derivatives (Continued)

The contract amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of transactions
outstanding as at the balance sheet date; they do not represent the amounts
at risk.

The credit risk weighted amounts are the amounts which have been calculated
in accordance with the Third Schedule of the Banking Ordinance and
guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority. The amounts
calculated are dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity
characteristics of each type of contract.

Replacement cost is the cost of replacing all contracts which have a positive
value when marked to market (should the counterparty default on its
obligations) and is obtained by marking to market contracts with a positive
value. Replacement cost is a close approximation of the credit risk for these
contracts at the balance sheet date.

39 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

40

Capital commitments for fixed assets outstanding as at 31st December not provided
for in the accounts were as follows:

FEERERST
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Expenditure contracted but not provided for 24,956 2,893

There are no other commitments outstanding as at 31st December 2002 (2001:

Nil).

LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31st December 2002 the Group had future aggregate minimum lease payment
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

FEERERST
Group and Bank
2002 2001
FET FHE T
HK$’000 HK$°000
Land and buildings
— Not later than one year 3,788 4,053
— Later than one year and not

later than five years 1,679 902
5,467 4,955
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41 LOANS TO OFFICERS

RT=A=t+-HzAEEHE
Balance outstanding at
31st December

Particulars of loans made to officers and disclosed pursuant to section 161B(4B)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

FARBEER
Maximum balance
during the year

2002 2001 2002 2001
FERT FE T FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Aggregate amount outstanding
in respect of principal and
interest 49,398 59,120 61,869 103,576
42 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
# (a) Analysis of changes in financing during the year
RA (BHERE)
BAEX Share capital ERKRE
Loan (including Dividends
capital premiums) paid
(Kt:t32) (M7t 33%34) (Ktit34) @t
[Note 32) [Note 33 & 34) (Note 34) Total
TETL TET TET TET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At Tst January 2001
- 1,684,191 - 1,684,191
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
financing activities 618,132 (66) (95,290) 522,776
Shares issued for non-cash
consideration = 2,120,000 = 2,120,000
Loan capital issued for non-cash
consideration 580,000 = = 580,000
Interest element on loan capital
10,496 - - 10,496
Dividends paid - - 95,290 95,290
At 31st December 2001
1,208,628 3,804,125 - 5,012,753
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
financing activities 2,007,653 747,902 (244,037) 2,511,518
Interest element on loan capital
38,263 - - 38,263
Dividends paid = = 244,037 244,037
Effect of foreign exchange
differences 186 - - 186
At 31st December 2002
3,254,730 4,552,027 — 7,806,757
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42 REBREHRERME @) 42 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)
(b) BeRSRAELEBALHRZIN (b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
2002 2001
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RATR % & H 2 B i 48 Cash and balances with banks and
ZHe Rt other financial institutions 161,525 176,625
WA RE BTN Money at call and short notice 15,402,917 5,892,102
JREIEAA =18 A A28 Treasury bills with original maturity
ZEH within three months 92,844 185,000
RIABE=EARTHZ Placements with banks and other
RITRAEREM SR financial institutions with original
BT R maturity within three months 1,033,844 240,135
REHR=EANIH Deposits and balances of banks and
RAITR R R H A% & other financial institutions with
BT R 48R original maturity within three months ~ (12,169,030) (6,678,468)
4,522,100 (184,606)
43 BRERDXT 43 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
MAEARANBEGESR 2BEE %+ The ultimate holding company is The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, a
BIRERTHIARRIT 2 REERAT o state-owned enterprise of the government of the People’s Republic of China.
44 BBEEZHME 44 APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS
ARBREN_ZT=F=-ANBKEE The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 4th March 2003.
A o
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THEMERKRBMMER 28 M - L IBKL
ERIRA EMAH -

The following information is disclosed as part of the accompanying information to the
accounts and does not form part of the audited accounts.

1 EXZELERRADESHE 1  CAPITAL ADEQUACY AND LIQUIDITY RATIOS
2002 2001
BEAF R E Capital adequacy ratio 17.9% 16.1%
BRRAEERFT R E Adjusted capital adequacy ratio 17.8% 16.1%
MEBEEHLE Liquidity ratio 35.9% 39.7%

BARRLEEART TRTMNMBE
RAGRRBTEXBEEERT A=
—ABRRTEGINR=GEIEAL
MABREAR R L RIEARRIT - TREN
REBROFIRKETFEARBERN T
A=+ —BRERECREEREMZ [EH
RRERENTHER]EI R G
R GRBEARRLEDH RN+ A
TH-RZEERMHAR -

MBESHLERMBFEANT_EALZE
AZYORGPEG X ZBEFHH - 1t
DEAROTRIREMNEBER QR
B YEERBRTREGIIMROMER -

The capital adequacy ratio represents the consolidated ratio of the Bank, ICBC
(Asia) Finance Limited and UBCBM as at 31st December computed in accordance
with the Third Schedule of the Banking Ordinance.

The adjusted capital adequacy ratio represents the consolidated ratio of the Bank,
ICBC (Asia) Finance Limited and UBCBM as at 31st December computed in
accordance with the guideline “Maintenance of Adequate Capital Against Market
Risks” issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority. The adjusted ratio takes into
account both credit and market risk as at 31st December.

The liquidity ratio is calculated as the simple average of each calendar month’s
average liquidity ratio for the twelve months of the financial year of the Bank and
ICBC (Asia) Finance Limited computed in accordance with the Fourth Schedule of
the Banking Ordinance.
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2 MEBRZEAXERARKHH 2  COMPONENTS OF CAPITAL BASE AFTER DEDUCTIONS
MRE 2 BARERARI D BEFE Lt The capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above capital
RYZA=+—HZBAXR R EWER adequacy ratios as at 31st December and reported to the Hong Kong Monetary
TEESRERRANMOT Authority is analysed as follows:
2002 2001
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$°000
BRLER Core capital:
GrERRRA Paid up ordinary share capital 1,248,749 1,062,639
AIEERIE R At Convertible non-cumulative preference
EP &N share capital 1,011,096 1,011,096
ERREE Ordinary share premium 1,786,686 1,224,894
IR Convertible non-cumulative preference
BRI E share premium 505,496 505,496
] Reserves 717,691 506,861
B Less: Goodwill (656,710) (692,208)
4,613,008 3,618,778
b & A Supplementary capital:
fanb:) Gk 2 g Reserves on revaluation of land and
EhEHE interests in land 136,487 157,669
IRFEEERAEES Reserves on revaluation of holding of
Bft#EE securities not held for trading purpose 5,304 9,618
—RREEHESE General provisions for doubtful debts 274,481 216,530
KAREER Perpetual subordinated debts 1,000,000 -
ERBEBERS Term subordinated debts 2,254,730 1,208,628
B o0& A 48 %8 Gross value of supplementary capital 3,671,002 1,592,445
ARt E 2 M &R Eligible value of supplementary capital 3,671,002 1,592,445
MRA 2 ERERBE Total capital base before deductions 8,284,010 5,211,223
kg - Deductions:
SEL =N Shareholdings in subsidiaries or
BERA R Z B holding company 15,247 15,257
HEE R R 2 BB RE Exposures to connected companies 490,415 489,171
A N B A F20% Equity investment of 20% or more in
S PA E 2 A E non-subsidiary companies 191,660 14,508
697,322 518,936
HEE s ERERBTE Total capital base after deductions 7,586,688 4,692,287
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HEEEE 3 CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS
rE
Group
E0 Bt ARY gt
Us$ Euro RMB Total
BrEE Equivalent in FET FET FET TERT
Hong Kong dollars HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—BECF 2002
REEE Spot assets 18,360,000 199,000 51,000 18,610,000
REaE Spot liabilities (29,789,000) (224,000) (40,000) (30,053,000)
RHEE A Forward purchases 16,903,000 38,000 79,000 17,020,000
EHE Y Formrardl selkes (5,415,000) (29,000) (79,0000  (5,523,000)
&/(B)% %8 Net long/(short) position 59,000 (16,000) 11,000 54,000
—ZTE—F 2001
REEE Spot assets 11,333,000 107,000 52,000 11,492,000
RERE Spot liabilities (16,089,000) (99,000) (41,000 (16,229,000)
EHEA Forward purchases 10,210,000 260,000 = 10,470,000
EHE N Forward sales (5,432,000) (266,000) - (5,698,000)
RBFHE Net long position 22,000 2,000 11,000 35,000
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4

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

(a) Advances to customers

(i)

(i)

Gross advances to customers by industry sector

&M
Group
2002 2001
FERL FET
HK$’000 HK$000
Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial
and financial
— Property development 1,549,711 1,384,403
— Property investment 4,738,696 4,507,171
— Financial concerns 2,383,681 3,429,683
— Stockbrokers 30,636 29,705
— Wholesale and
retail trade 1,539,200 1,790,310
— Civil engineering works 766,555 240,256
— Manufacturing 1,452,387 975,222
— Transport and
transport equipment 4,832,851 3,836,087
— Electricity, gas and
telecommunications 1,518,066 1,404,365
— Hotels, boarding house
and catering 1,138,859 801,429
— Others 3,358,114 2,075,800
Individuals
— Loans for the purchase of
flats in the Home Ownership
Scheme, Private Sector
Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 118,356 118,255
— Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties 6,337,275 4,514,148
— Others 697,311 876,309
Trade finance 1,058,464 949,344
Loans for use outside Hong Kong 889,823 1,154,193
32,409,985 28,086,680

In 2002 and 2001, over 90% of the Group’s advances to customers
were made to counterparties located in Hong Kong. In determining
this analysis no account has been taken of transfer of risk with respect
to claims guaranteed by a party in a country different from that of
the counterparty.
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2002

Asia Pacific excluding
Hong Kong

North and South America

Europe

2001

Asia Pacific excluding
Hong Kong

North and South America

Europe

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Cross-border claims

The Group analyses cross-border claims by geographical area. In determining
this analysis, it has been taken into account of transfer of risk with respect
to claims guaranteed by a party in a country different from that of the
Company. Those areas which constitute 10% or more of the aggregate
cross-border claims are as follows:

AEH
Group
BRITRAERHE
fb & B R
Banks and DNEBE
other Public
financial sector Hit ot
institutions entities Others Total
BEEETT BEEETT BEEETT BEEET

HKS million

HKS million

HKS million

HKS million

11,634 332 5,984 17,950
229 - 1,554 1,783
8,428 - 385 8,813
4,132 392 6,353 10,877
395 — 1,751 2,146
3,914 — 14 3,928
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5 BHRERER 5 OVERDUE AND RESCHEDULED ADVANCES
(o) AEERFEFRZOHBHBERES (a)  The gross amount of the Group’s advances to customers which have been
DR overdue are analysed as follows:
N
Group
HEFEX
Bl

Percentage K& T E
BB of advances Market EHFSE BEFSE HEEE

Gross to  value of  Secured Unsecured Specific
advances customers  collateral amount amount  provision
FER Bk FERT FERT FERT FERT
HK$’000 % HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$S’000 HK$’000
R-EE-F At 31st December
+=ZA=+—-H 2002
7~ B e A T1E  Six months or less but
HBB=1EA over three months 52,925 0.2 47,905 41,562 11,363 9,570
—FHLATA  One year or less
HiE S E A but over six months 22,505 0.1 26,355 21,907 598 1,304
HBR—F Over one year 378,542 1.1 305,299 251,956 126,586 113,971
453,972 1.4 379,559 315,425 138,547 124,845
WZTE—F At 31st December
+ZA=+—B8 2001
7~ B e A T1E  Six months or less but
HBE=/A over three months 92,392 0.3 29,257 28,371 64,021 62,022
—F %L TE  One year or less
BN E A but over six months 135,758 0.4 58,143 51,837 83,921 70,533
HBR—F Over one year 1,405,124 5.0 727,078 601,556 803,568 722,923
1,633,274 57 814,478 681,764 951,510 855,478
R-ZBE-_F+-_A=+—RAk= At 31st December 2002 and 31st December 2001, there were no advances
EZT—F+_A=+—H T ESA to banks and other financial institutions, trade bills, or debt securities which
HRB=EACRTAEREMS were overdue for over three months.

BEBER BAXEBIES -
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BYRERER (B) 5
b) BB (b)
EBRRFER Rescheduled advances

to customers

BEERENEREHER=E
AZBEBREHRBIALX (qB 28
HERDITA -
R_BEE-_F+-_A=+—-HK=-Z
E—F+-A=+—H TESEE
TREREMBESBEBEZER -
BHRERERATENER (TE (c)
HIFAFBE) CHEWT ¢

afEe=fA
ZER
BEEX

B BB =EA
EBHREHMEZER

AR HE )
ZEBER

o mEA e =EA
RREEREL
TRHER

TREAOER
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BiE@00% s AR TRAOERY
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OVERDUE AND RESCHEDULED ADVANCES (Continued)

Rescheduled advances

REE

Group
HEFER ERFER
2002 Aot 2001 B
F#ET % of advances F&T % of advances
HK$’000 to customers HK$°000 to customers
232,682 0.7% 346,161 1.2%

Rescheduled advances which have been overdue for more than three months
under the revised repayment terms are included in the analysis of overdue
advances in (a) above.

At 31st December 2002 and 31st December 2001, there were no
rescheduled advances to banks and other financial institutions.

Overdue and rescheduled advances are reconciled to non-performing loans,
which represent advances on which interest is being placed in suspense or
on which interest accrual has ceased, as follows:

rEH
Group
EFER
Advances to customers
2002 2001
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Advances which are overdue for
more than three months 453,972 1,633,274
Rescheduled advances 232,682 346,161
686,654 1,979,435
Less: Advances which are overdue for
more than three months and
on which interest is still
being accrued (3,475) (109,823)
Less: Rescheduled advances on which
interest is still being accrued (20,796) (43,178)
Add: Non-performing loans
which are not overdue for more
than three months or
rescheduled 76,549 103,039
Non-performing loans 738,932 1,929,473

In 2002 and 2001, over 90% of the Group’s overdue and non-performing
loans were made to counterparties located in Hong Kong.
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5 BHEREREXR(4)

(d)

(e)

(f)

ROREREMSBBE TR

%) Hf
— BB

FE A2

78 5y :
— ~NMEAAKUTEBB=@EA

— —FRUATERBNEA
- BB—F

BEEE

Yo m & B

R-_EZ-_F+-_fF=+—8"
X &£ ZWEEEA
107,113,000 L (=2 % —
F: 138,356,000/ L) °
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OVERDUE AND RESCHEDULED ADVANCES (Continued)

(d)

(f)

Placements with banks and other financial institutions

Overdue for:
— over one year

Accrued interest

Overdue for:
— six months or less but
over three months
— one year or less but
over six months
— over one year

Rescheduled assets

Repossessed assets

rE

Group
2002 2001
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$°000
- 38,988

rE

Group
2002 2001
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$°000
473 355
488 940
4,422 11,671
5,383 12,966
71 135
5,454 13,101

At 31st December 2002, the repossessed assets of the Group amounted to
HK$107,113,000 (2001: HK$138,356,000).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank has fully complied with the requirements set out in the Supervisory
Policy Manual “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorized
Institutions” issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority on 21st September
2001.

General Management Committee

The General Management Committee was established on 24th September 2001
as an operation authority and to supervise the overall operation of the Group.
The Committee comprises the Chief Executive Officer, all Deputy General Managers
and three Assistant General Managers designated by the Chief Executive Officer.
Eleven meetings were held during the current financal year.

Credit Committee

The Credit Committee was established to maintain a well-balanced credit risk
portfolio of the Bank and to set the framework for decisions of individual exposures.
The Committee also responsible for the review and approval of the large credit
exposures and portfolio management of risk concentrations. The Committee consists
of the Head of Risk Management Department who is the Chairman of the
Comnmittee, all Deputy General Managers and the Head of Commercial Banking
Department. The Committee regularly reviews credit-related policies or procedures
and to approve credit reports originating from the Bank and its subsidiaries.

Asset and Liability Management Committee

The Asset and Liability Management Committee was established on 12th July
1999 to closely monitor the mix of liquid assets and funding channels, and the
exposure fo movements in interest rate and foreign exchange. The Committee
members also meet to review the optimal liquidity level in response to internal
requirements and external market indicators. The Committee comprises the Chief
Financial Officer who is the Chairman of the Committee, all Deputy General
Managers, the Assistant General Manager in charge of Business Units, the Head
of Risk Management Department and the Head of Treasury & Markets Department.
The Committee meets on a monthly basis.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee was established on 5th September 2002 to
review and report to the Board of Directors on the adequacy and efficiency of
risk management procedures, policies and systems of the Group. The Committee
focuses on credit risk, interest rate risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational
risk, reputation risk and strategic risk. The Committee comprises the Chief Executive
Officer, the Deputy General Manager in charge of Risk Management Department
who is the Chairman of the Committee, an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Bank, the Deputy General Manager in charge of Treasury & Markets
Department, the Chief Financial Officer, the Head of Treasury & Markets Department
and the Head of Risk Management Department. The Committee reports quarterly
to the Board.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established policies and procedures for the identification,
measurement, control and monitoring of credit, liquidity, foreign exchange, interest
rate and market risks. The policies and procedures are reviewed on a regular
basis by senior management and the relevant functional committees. The internal
auditors also perform regular checks to ensure compliance with policies and
procedures.

(a)

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that a borrower or counterparty of the Group will be
unable or unwilling to honour a repayment obligation. The Group has
standards, policies and procedures and designated functional departments
in place to control and monitor these risks.

The Group recognizes that sound credit risk management is essential to
business growth and maximization of the return on the Group’s resources
employed. The management has laid down credit policies in forms of Credit
Manual and other policy papers, which formulate the necessary credit risk
management process to identify, measure, monitor and control risks inherent
in the operation of various lending business. This process ensures prudence
in lending and enables potential problems to be detected and tackled as
early as practicable, thereby minimizing business loss.

High-level credit policies of the Group are set, reviewed and constantly
updated by the Credit Committee, the General Management Committee,
and the Board to take balanced accounts of the dynamic market situation,
regulatory development, the Group’s usual prudent lending practices and
the latest business strategies. They also review the efficiency of credit
approval processes and delegate credit approval authorities.

Contained in the Credit Manual is also the credit approval matrix for
sanctioning lending propositions. To uphold a high degree of professionalism
in the exercise of credit approval authorities, credit approvers are selected
by Credit Committee with level of authority commensurate with the individual
credit officer’s area of responsibilities, exposure and experience leave. To
maintain objectivity and balance, the Group adopts a “dual approval”
system whereby credit proposition generally requires joint-approval by at
least two credit approvers or otherwise requires approval by Credit
Committee.
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7

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk management (Continved)

Credit Risk Management Department is the centralized department in the
Group mandated to carry out credit policies. The department, amongst
other functions, provides independent credit assessment, post-approval credit
administration and other credit control functions, to ensure that the credit
process complies with the Group's credit policies and guidelines laid down
by the Management. Apart from the independent credit assessment and
matrix approval process, regular credit audits are conducted on specific
loan portfolio or operating units in the credit process. To maintain its
independence, Credit Risk Management Department has a direct reporting
line to Risk Management Department, which in turn reports to a Deputy
General Manager independent of business.

The management spares no efforts in monitoring the quality and behavior
of the loan portfolio. The Group's internal credit risks grading system was
first introduced since the last quarter of 2000 to track the health of the
Group's loan portfolio. The grading system expands beyond HKMA's standard
5-grades system and incorporates a 15-ier classification system by weighing
borrowers’ financial, management, ownership, industrial and other
characteristics. With internal data being constantly enriched through years
of experience, it is expected that the Group could make further use of
statistics in the internal credit risk grading system to profile and track down
credit risk migration and to measure loan default probabilities etc.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group cannot meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due. Liquidity risk management is therefore to ensure
that there is adequate cash flows to meet all financial obligations in both
normal and contingency circumstances in a cost-effective manner whereas
at the same time complies with all regulatory requirements. To manage
liquidity risk, the Group has established the Asset and Liquidity Management
Policy which is reviewed by the Group’s Asset and Liability Management
Comnmittee (the “ALCO") and approved by the Board of Directors. Liquidity
is also managed and forecasted on a daily basis to enable Treasury and
Markets Department and ALCO to react proactively according to fluctuations
in market conditions and implement contingency plans on a timely basis.
The Group continues to explore and diversify funding channels to capitalize
on opportunities for the Group's business expansion. The elevation of the
Group's profile, being a member of ICBC Group, has created more rooms
and capabilities in liquidity management. During the year, the Group issued
HK$1,429,002,000 Certificates of Deposits to secure longer term funding.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuved)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk management (Continued)

The liquidity position remained strong throughout the year of 2002 with
average liquidity ratio at 35.9% (2001: 39.7%), which was well above the
statutory requirement of 25%.

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to execute its strategic business plans and
support its growth and investments in an efficient way. The Group’s level of
capital base and capital ratio at 31st December 2002 remained strong,
with capital adequacy ratios well above the regulatory requirements. During
the year, the Group enlarged the Tier 1 capital by issuing 93,055,000 new
ordinary shares at an allotted price of HK$8.16 each which represented a
premium of HK$6.16 each. Moreover, HK$1,000,000,000 perpetual
subordinated floating rate notes and HK$1,045,916,000 equivalent 10
years' subordinated floating rate notes with 5 years’ call were also issued
to boost the total capital. The Group’s adjusted Tier 1 and total capital
adequacy ratios were 10.9% and 17.8%, respectively at 31st December
2002.

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that market rates and prices on assets, liabilities and
off-balance sheet positions change, thus causing profits or losses. Generally,
the Group's market risk is associated with its positions in foreign exchange,
debt securities, equity securities and derivatives in the trading book. Most
off-balance sheet derivative positions arise from the execution of customer-
related orders and positions taken to hedge other elements of the trading

book.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed within
risk limits and guidelines approved by the ALCO. Exposures are measured
and monitored on the basis of principal or notional amount, outstanding
balances and stop-loss limits. Independent Middle Office monitors the risks
exposure of trading activities against approved limits on a daily basis. The
Group's market risks exposures are reviewed by the ALCO while exceptions
to limits are reported when they occur. Internal Audit also performs regular
review and tfesting to ensure compliance with the market risk limits and
guidelines.

The average daily revenue earned from the Group’s market risk related
activities during the year was HK$39,000 (2001: HK$59,000) and the
standard deviation for such daily revenve was HK$103,000 (2001:
HK$235,000).
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7 RBEREE@) 7  RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(d) TERBREE (&) (d) Market risk management (Continued)
T§‘J REBERITAEERE TS The following histograms show the frequency distribution of daily revenues
RiEBZEH Hﬁl*ﬁ/\*%giﬁ related to market risk activities of the Group in 2002 and 2001.
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BERREE Interest rate risk management
BEEBRTIERRT IS /%\—_%——%@ﬁﬁ Interest rate risk is the risk that the Group’s position may be adversely
ﬂzl»‘% B EGRRER AR 8 affected by a change in market interest rates. The Group's inferest rate risk
o REBZE iﬂﬁ E Y 5 arises mainly from the timing differences in the repricing of interest bearing
ﬁuﬁuﬁﬁﬁﬁh BEE 7 assets and liabilities.
=
AEEFREERBRIZAERY The Group manages its interest rate risk by way of entering into off-balance
HIAEBRHEEEZRER BEERE sheet inferest rate hedging instruments to hedge a proportion of the Group's
ZEECRREMSREXLEME assets as determined by the ALCO upon consideration of market and interest
AEEHNEERLE D - rate conditions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuved)

(d)

(f)

Market risk management (Continved)
Foreign exchange risk management

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the net exposure positions in foreign
currencies will adversely affect the Group as a result of a change in exchange
rates. The Group has very limited foreign exchange exposure as foreign
exchange positions are normally hedged. The net foreign exchange positions
are managed by Treasury and Markets Department on a daily basis within
established limits approved by the ALCO.

Foreign currency funding used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets is normally
hedged using currency swaps or forward exchange contracts to mitigate
the foreign exchange risk.

Operational risk management

Operational risks is the risk of unexpected financial losses attributable to
human error, fraud, unauthorised activities, system failure and natural
disaster. It is inherent to every business organisation and covers a wide
spectrum of issues. Such risk is mitigated through the implementation of
comprehensive internal control system, adequate insurance cover, offshore
computer back-up sites and thorough contingency plans with periodic drills.
Internal audit also plays an important role in detecting any deviations from
operating procedures and identifying weaknesses at all operating levels
independently and objectively.

Legal, strategic and reputation risk management

Over the past year, the Group took significant steps to further enhance
controls regarding legal, strategic and reputation risks. The Compliance
Department was established in November 2001 to handle all relevant
compliance issues concerning the Group. With the issuance of Compliance
Policy and monthly Compliance Bulletin, together with the provision of
regular compliance training, all staff are kept abreast of the latest legal
and regulatory developments. The Compliance Department also performs
compliance checking and provides advice on new products and corporate
issues to ensure compliance in all aspects.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Members
of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited (the “Bank”) will
be held at 11th Floor, ICBC Tower, 122-126 Queen’s Road Central, Hong
Kong on Wednesday, 16th April 2003 at 10:00 a.m. for the following

purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited Statement of Accounts and the
Reports of the Directors and of the Auditors for the year ended 31st
December 2002.

2. To declare a final dividend.
3. To elect Directors.
4.  To approve the payment of Directors’ fees for the year ended 31st

December 2002.

5. To appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as Auditors of the Bank and to
authorise the Directors fo fix their remuneration.

To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without amendments the following
Ordinary Resolutions by way of special business:

6. "THAT

(a)

(b)

subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the Board of
Directors of the Bank during the Relevant Period (as defined below)
of all the powers of the Bank to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares in the capital of the Bank, and to make or grant
offers, agreements or options (including warrants, bonds and
debentures convertible into shares of the Bank) which would or
might require the exercise of such powers, be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved,;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares in the capital of the
Bank allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be
allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the Board
of Directors of the Bank pursuant to the approval in paragraph
(a) above, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as defined
below); (ii) the exercise of rights of subscription or conversion
under the terms of any warrants of the Bank or any securities
which are convertible into shares of the Bank; (iii) any script
dividend or similar arrangement providing for the allotment of
shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on shares of the
Bank pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Bank from time
to time; or (iv) any option scheme or similar arrangement for the
time being adopted for the grant or issue to employees of the
Bank, and/or any of its subsidiaries of shares or rights to acquire
shares of the Bank, shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Bank in issue as at the date of
passing of this Resolution and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and
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for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this
Resolution until whichever is the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Bank;

(i)  the expiration of the period within which the next Annual
General Meeting of the Bank is required by the Articles of
Association of the Bank or the Companies Ordinance to be

held; or

(iii)  the revocation or variation of the authority given under this
Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of
the Bank in general meeting.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares of the Bank open for a
period fixed by the Board of Directors of the Bank to holders of
shares of the Bank whose names appear on the register of members
of the Bank on a fixed record date in proportion to their then
holdings of such shares or class thereof (subject to such exclusions
or other arrangements as the Directors of the Bank may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or
having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws
of, or the requirements of any recognized regulatory body or any
stock exchange in, any territory applicable to the Bank).”

“THAT

(a)

(b)

subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the Board of
Directors of the Bank during the Relevant Period (as defined below)
of all the powers of the Bank to repurchase shares in the capital
of the Bank, subject to and in accordance with all applicable
laws and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited as
amended from time to time, be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares in the capital of the
Bank which may be repurchased by the Bank pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the
Bank as at the date of passing of this Resolution, and the said
approval shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this
Resolution until whichever is the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Bank;

(i)  the expiration of the period within which the next Annual
General Meeting of the Bank is required by the Articles of
Association of the Bank or the Companies Ordinance to be

held; or
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

(iii)  the revocation or variation of the authority given under this
Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of

the Bank in general meeting.”

“THAT, conditional on the passing of the Ordinary Resolution Nos. 6
and 7 as set out in the notice convening this Meeting of which this
Resolution forms part (“the Notice”), the aggregate number of shares in
the capital of the Bank which may be repurchased by the Bank under
the authority granted to the Board of Directors of the Bank by the
Ordinary Resolution No. 7 set out in the Notice shall be added to the
aggregate number of shares in the capital of the Bank that may be
allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted by the
Board of Directors of the Bank pursuant to Ordinary Resolution No. 6
set out in the Notice.”

By Order of the Board
Lai Wing Nga
Company Secretary

Kong, 4th March 2003

The register of members of the Bank will be closed from Wednesday, 9th
April 2003 to Wednesday, 16th April 2003, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
the proposed dividend, all transfers, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged for registration with the Bank’s Share Registrars,
Tengis Limited at G/F., BEA Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong by no later than 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 8th April
2008.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint
one or a maximum of two proxies to attend and, on a poll, to vote on his
behalf. If more than one proxy is so appointed, the appointment shall
specify the number and class of shares in respect of which each such proxy
is so appointed. A proxy need not be a member of the Bank.

To be valid, a form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other
authority (if any) under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy of
such power of attorney, must be lodged with the Bank’s Share Registrars,
Tengis Limited at G/F., BEA Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for
holding the meeting (or any adjournment thereof) and in default the proxy
shall not be treated as valid. Completion and return of a form of proxy will
not preclude members from attending in person and voting at the meeting or
any adjournment thereof should they so wish.

In relation to Ordinary Resolution No. 7, an explanatory statement (as
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the “Listing Rules”) is being sent to
shareholders on or about 31st March 2003.
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(e)

In connection with Ordinary Resolution Nos. 6 and 7 above, approval is
being sought from members, as a general mandate in compliance with
section 57B of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and the Listing Rules, so that in the event it becomes desirable for the
Bank to issue any new shares or to repurchase any existing shares of the
Bank, the Board of Directors of the Bank are given the flexibility and discretion
to allot and issue new shares up to 20% of the issued share capital of the
Bank, together with such number of shares as may be repurchased by the
Bank pursuant to the general mandate under Ordinary Resolution No. 7, as
more particularly described in Ordinary Resolution Nos. 6, 7 and 8. The
Directors wish to state that they have no immediate plans to issue any new
shares or to repurchase any existing shares of the Bank.
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